L
Convention IL
Arena
Authority L
Steven Heacock, Iv.
Chairman
Birgit Klohs
Clif Charles
Gary Mclnerney
George Heartwell
Joseph Tomaselli
Lew Chamberlin
V.
VL
VIIL
VIIL

Ande! Arena®
Fulton West

.742.6600
616.742.6197

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
e e R et e o R S R i

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT, CONVENTION

SHOW & SPORIS FACILITIES

Meeting of Board of Directors

Wednesday, May 25, 2005
*8:00 a.m. —9:30 a.m. *
Kent County Board Room, 3" Floor
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

Call to Order

Approval of April 27, 2005 Minutes

Opera Grand Rapids Presentation — John Peter Jeffries

Committee Reports
a. Operations Committee

i. CAA Charity Event Recommendation
(to be available at meeting)

ii. CVB Update
b. Finance Committee

L Approval of SMG April 2005 Financial

AGENDA

Action

Information

Action

Action

Statements - DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

il. Approval of CAA April 2005 Financial
Statements and Disbursements
iii. Presentation of SMG Preliminary FY 2006

Action

Information

Operating Budgets - DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®

iv. Presentation of CAA Preliminary FY 2006

Operating Budget

\2 Presentation of Proposed Parking Operation
and Maintenance Agreement - DeVos Place®

SMG Report and Facilities Calendars

Public Comment

Next Meeting Date — June 22, 2005

Adjournment

*Note New Meeting Time*

nd Rapids, Ml 49503-2601

Information

Information

Information

Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2233
616.742.6500
Fax 616.742.6590



Item I1

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, April 27, 2005

Call to Order

Chairman Steve Heacock called the meeting to order at 8:05 a.m. Chairman Heacock presided

and Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs recorded.

Attendance
Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chairman
Lew Chamberlin
George Heartwell
Birgit Klohs
Joseph Tomaselli
Members Absent: Clif Charles
Gary Mclnemey
Staff/Others: David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
George Helmstead CVB
Kurt Kimball City of Grand Rapids
Chris Knape The Grand Rapids Press
James Koslosky Gerald R. Ford International Airport
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Steve Miller SMG
Susan Sherman Gerald R. Ford International Airport
Greg Sundstrom City of Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White Kent County
Steve Wilson CVB

Minutes of Prior Meetings

Motion: Mr. Heartwell, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to approve the Minutes of the March 23,
2005, meeting of the Authority. Motion carried unanimously.

118 Airport Master Plan Update

James Koslosky, Director, and Susan Sherman, Marking & Communications, of Gerald R. Ford
International Airport (GRIA) attended the meeting to present the 2004 master plan update. GFIA, owned
and operated by the Kent County Department of Aeronautics, became self-supporting in the 1970’s
through fees, rents, and charges. GFIA provides two air carrier runways, a general aviation runway,



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 27, 2005 - 2

associated taxiways, passenger terminal, fire rescue facility, maintenance facility, air cargo and trade
center, and a Foreign Trade Zone. GFIA was one of the few airports in the nation to experience
continued growth after September 11, 2001. The unanticipated requirements of new security measures
resulted in capacity shortfalls in the terminal. The master plan was updated to take a comprehensive look
at future requirements, including new security needs, and recent trends in the airline industry, and the
impacts they have on all GFIA facilities.

Master plans promote a continuous planning process with vision and proactive planning, rather than
reactive planning, while providing a logical development plan based on current and projected conditions.
The master plan will provide a phased and flexible plan that is responsive to short-term and long-term
needs. The plan is required to receive federal grant funding.

Components of the master plan included the study design and identification of issues; inventory; surveys
and data collection; aviation forecasts; demand capacity and analysis; determination of facility
requirements; development of alternatives and concepts; financial feasibility; environmental analysis;
implementation plan for development; and the updating of airport layout plan documents.

Mr. Koslosky provided a brief history of the master plan process. The original master plan for the current
Cascade site was completed in 1959. Thereafter, the master plan was updated in 1968, 1983, 1992, and
2004. Under a continuous planning process, master plans are reviewed and benchmarked against actual
performance. Formal comprehensive master plan updates are completed every seven to ten years.

The master plan update recommends a series of projects to be implemented as the need arises. The three-
runway airfield is sufficient to meet the 20-year capacity needs. The master plan update recommends
continuing to preserve land on the north side of the airport for the future third air carrier runway. The
terminal will be expanded to accommodate new checked-bag screening procedures. Ticketing, bag claim,
and concourses will be expanded to meet future growth. A 3,000-space parking garage will be built in
front of the terminal. The construction will be extremely disruptive and require shuttle service for about
two years. Future air cargo expansion will occur on the east side of the airport. Older general aviation
facilities will be redeveloped and expansion will occur along the north and east sides of the airfield.

IV. Committee Reports

Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin reported that Joyce Flowers has been hired as the CVB’s sales director for the east side
of the state. SMG is working on renewal of suites and premium seats. In February, SMG hired a new
group sales manager who has had a significant impact on family shows and bringing groups to the arena.
After the meeting, the Committee toured DeVos Place® and the building was in full operations.
Committee members were able to see meeting rooms being used, set up and load out, and the buzz of
human activity in public spaces.

Mr. Wilson reported that, for the first quarter of the year, the CVB was 102% of its goals. The CVB was
able to book the American Coal Directors due to the cooperation of SMG and the Amway Grand Plaza to
move existing events. The convention will attract 2,000 people and utilize 700 room nights. Mayor
Heartwell introduced the CVB to the National Freewill Baptist Association that is looking to book in
2015. The marketing department has developed a new tradeshow lure piece titled “You’ll Get Hooked.”
Both SMG and the CVB will be able to use the piece to market collaboratively. Mr. Helmstead reported
that the CVB has 156 groups confirmed for DeVos Place with 57 tentatives on the books.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
April 27,2005 -3

Finance Committee
The Finance Commiittee did not meet in April and staff presented the Finance Committee reports.

a. Approval of SMG Financial Statements for DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
Motion: Mr. Chamberlin, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended March 31, 2005. Motion carried
unanimously.

b. Approval of CAA Disbursements and Financial Statements

Motion: Ms.Klohs, supported by Mr.Tomaselli, moved to approve the CAA Disbursements and Financial
Statements for the period ended March 31, 2005. Motion carried unanimously.

c. Renewal of Director and Officers Insurance Policy

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Tomaselli, moved to confirm the action of Chairman Steven
Heacock to bind renewal of the directors and officers insurance coverage. Motion carried unanimously.

V. SMG Report

Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan reported that this summer at the Van Andel Arena® looks slow. The Arena will end the
fiscal year with 25 concerts. Mr. Miller reported that the number events at DeVos Place® would exceed
the budget. Upcoming events include the Muscular Dystrophy Black & Blue Ball; Merrill footwear
meeting; a scrapbook convention; Dora the Explorer; Grease; and Les Miserables.

VI. Committee Appointments

Chairman Heacock announced that he has appointed two additional members to the Finance Committee.
Michael P. Freed is Executive Vice President of Corporate Resources & Chief Financial Officer of
Spectrum Health. David Hoogendoorn is Managing Partner of Ernest & Young LLP.

VII. Public Comment

None.
VIII. Next Meeting Date

The next CAA Board meeting is Wednesday, May 25, 2005.

IX. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:15 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2005

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Hank Abate

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

- An SMG Managed Facllity

C

Item IV.b.1.

E



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2005

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE
SALES
OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES
CAPITAL

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER
OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE

409 59 468 376 92

530,557 83,400 613,057 670,425 (56,468)
1,732,569 217,526 1,950,095 1,987,844 (37,749)
1,214,108 135,847 1,349,955 1,092,068 257,887
2,946,677 353,373 3,300,050 3,079,912 220,138
96,530 11,072 107,602 167,000 (59,398)
3,043,207 364,445 3,407,652 3,246,912 160,740
95,731 23,614 119,345 127,132 7,787
177,517 32,501 210,018 201,022 (8,996)

43,283 10,986 54,269 61,260 6,991

704,419 215,028 919,447 1,000,395 80,948

629,934 196,981 826,915 884,638 57,723

69,061 14,267 83,328 85,107 1,779
114,995 23,187 138,182 135,838 (2,344)
1,831,481 347,602 2,179,083 2,140,462 (38,621)
3,666,421 864,166 4,530,587 4,635,854 105,267
(623,215) (499,721) (1,122,935) (1,388,942) 266,007
(623,215) (499,721) (1,122,935) (1,388,942) 266,007

DeVos Place performed very consistent with budget for April, and
continues to come in ahead of budget year to date. The calendar
looks strong for the final two months of the fiscal year, and should
allow Devos Place to finish well ahead of original budgeted numbers.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2005

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2005, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH April April April

Actual Budget FY 2004
Number of Events 66 48 50
Attendance 46,753 58,400 40,652
Direct Event Income $194,989 $226,321 $189,500
Ancillary Income 193,001 158,411 115,906
Other Income 16,303 13,917 13,044
Indirect Expenses (372,678) (382,462) (408,660)
Net Income $31,615 $16,187 ($90,210)
YTD YTD 2005 YTD 2005 YTD 2004

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 409 317 303
Attendance 530,557 587,025 498,721
Direct Event income $1,732,569 $1,770,318 $1,394,994
Ancillary Income 1,214,108 956,221 769,408
Other income 96,530 139,170 99,860
Indirect Expenses (3,666,422) (3,941,420) (3,000,645)
Net Income ($623,215) ($1,075,711) ($736,384)

EVENT INCOME

Direct event income came in under budget during the month, however, consistent with the
revised forecast.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income continues to come in higher than budget, and April was no exception.
Catering and Audio Visual income were very strong for the month, however, consistent
with the revised forecast.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

indirect expenses were consistent overall with budget. Personel expenses came in
higher, however, were offfset by the savings in utilities for the month.




SMG DeVos Place

Year to Date Event Summary Report
For Month Ended April 30, 2005

Event Type
Convention/Trade Shows
Consumer/Gated Shows
Devos Performance Hall
Ballroom Exclusive
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Convention/Trade Shows
Consumer/Gated Shows
Devos Performance Hall
Ballroom Exclusive

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
108 90 100,755 111,850 1,062,440 928,499
54 55 209,198 251,850 903,752 907,926
121 122 154,052 175,200 556,900 544,818
17 15 8,673 7,500 31,102 126,525
109 35 57,879 4,740,625 422,284 218,771
409 317 530,557 5,287,025 2,976,478 2,726,539
26.41% 28.39% 18.99% 2.12% 35.69% 34.05%
13.20% 17.35% 39.43% 4.76% 30.36% 33.30%
29.58% 38.49% 29.04% 3.31% 18.71% 19.98%
4.16% 4.73% 1.63% 0.14% 1.04% 4.64%
26.65% 11.04% 1091% 89.67% 14.19% 8.02%



DE VOS PLACE
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/0S

----------------- CURRENT - - =~ - ===~ === mmmeme mmmmmeccmmmmmmem YD m oo oo oo mmmmm oo
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 207,587 217,825 177,650 1,717,830 1,679,796 1,322,425
SERVICES INCOME <12,598> 8,496 11,850 14,739 90,522 72,568
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 194,989 226,321 189,500 1,732,569 1,770,318 1,394,994
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 62,458 31,320 21,022 391,484 318,834 225,528
NOVELTY 288 2,750 4,361 5,211 13,100 16,034
ELECTRICAL 41,778 64,706 50,364 298,088 301,253 240,052
OTHER ANCILLARY 88,477 59,635 40,159 519,324 323,034 287,794
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 193,001 158,411 115,906 1,214,108 956,221 769,408
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 387,990 384,732 305,406 2,946,677 2,726,539 2,164,402
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 16,303 13,917 13,044 96,530 139,170 99,860
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 404,293 398,649 318,450 3,043,207 2,865,709 2,264,262
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 9,604 10,596 10,594 95,731 105, 960 109,878
FINANCE 24,562 16,752 18,493 177,517 167,520 141,769
MARKETING 4,071 5,104 4,686 43,283 51,040 41,799
OPERATIONS 94,002 85,074 96,225 704,419 835,240 520,261
EVENT MANAGEMENT 79,420 73,470 106,261 629,934 737,700 503,382
BOX OFFICE 8,740 7,093 7,508 69,061 70,930 61,198
SALES 13,333 11,321 13,122 114,995 113,210 123,469
OVERHEAD 138,945 173,052 151,771 1,831,481 1,859,820 1,498,890
INDIRECT EXPENSES 372,678 382,462 408,660 3,666,422 3,941,420 3,000,645
NET OPERATING INCOME 31,615 16,187 <90,210> <623,215>  <1,075,711> <736,384>
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 31,615 16,187 <90,210> <623,215>  <1,075,711> <736,384>




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/05

---------------- CURRENT----=--=---c---cov --e-----------YEAR TO DATE~-------------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 1,246 0 9,538 8,893 0 42,846
Changeover Setup Billed 795 0 58 9,797 0 8,701
Stagehands Billed 127,254 121,200 68,605 735,854 568,615 676,698
Security Billed 18,166 7,995 14,295 144,608 79,815 92,985
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 12,844 12,100 13,314 106,995 95,225 108,954
Box Office Billed 1,633 1,800 1,400 14,133 14,200 15,700
Ticketing Service Billed 6,653 13,175 21,266 117,418 123,275 168,260
Utilities Billed 0 0 0 0 0 1,575
City Police Fire Billed 1,435 0 2,678 24,942 7,780 21,362
Traffic Control Billed 126 0 4,154 20,861 23,200 31,504
EMT Medical Billed 2,325 1,750 2,988 24,988 20,163 24,860
Cleaning Billed 0 0 S0 3,562 0 3,145
Insurance Billed 319 0 ' 75 5,259 0 1,178
Group Sales Commissions Billed 84 0 0 84 0 (4]
Telephone Billed 6,000 975 5,665 52,205 5,600 29,705
Damages Billed [+ 0 0 350 0 2,976
Other Production Billed 1,721 0 3,584 46,945 0 30,556
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 180,600 158,995 147,669 1,316,892 937,873 1,261,005
Advertising Expense 1,246 0 9,538 9,019 0 41,267
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense [ 0 0 0 0 1,274
Allocated Changeover & Setup Expense 0 0 0 0 0 4,284
Stagehand Wages 117,129 117,564 67,807 674,643 551,557 656,577
Security Wages 0 7,995 0 0 79,815 0
Contracted Security Expense 17,570 0 12,885 134,992 0 87,604
Ushers & T/T Wages 8,991 8,470 9,320 74,896 66,658 75,776
Ticket Sellers Wages 749 1,850 1,244 14,960 11,450 15,260
Ticket Service Charge Expense 2,921 5,270 8,447 28,934 48,673 50,042
Ticket Supplies 0 0 0 5,481 0 0
City Police Fire Expense 1,435 0 2,678 24,880 3,230 21,362
Traffic Control Expense 325 0 4,789 28,747 24,300 36,013
EMT Medical Expense 2,011 1,700 2,625 20,586 19,963 19,268
Production Materials 0 [] 0 0 0 492
Cleaning Wages 0 7,650 0 0 41,705 14,146
Contracted Cleaning Expense 36,583 0 12,236 211,049 0 122,625
Contracted Exhibit Expense 1] 0 0 0 0 6,000
Insurance Expense 262 0 75 4,127 0 1,283
Allocated Telephone Expense 1,500 0 1,416 13,044 0 7,446
Damage Expense 0 0 0 1] 1] 2,875
Production Expense 2,477 0 2,761 56,795 0 24,844
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 193,198 150,499 135,819 1,302,153 847,351 1,188,437

NET SERVICE INCOME <12,598> 8,496 11,850 14,739 90,522 72,568




DE VOS PLACE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/05

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
CASH 1,942,339
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1,057,323
PREPAID EXPENSES 62,541
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,062,203
FIXED ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS 3,062,203
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 389,196
ACCRUED EXPENSES 91,635
DEFERRED INCOME 13,477
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS 927,082
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,421,390
EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED <350,000>
FUNDING RECEIVED 1,377,761
RETAINED EARNINGS 1,236,267
NET INCOME (LOSS) <623,215>
TOTAL EQUITY 1,640,813
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,062,203



SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ended April 30, 2005

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable @ 3/31/05

123,739
58,831
35,709
54,082

601,982

122,300

45,960

5,736
1,696
5,002
2,286

1,057,323



DE VOS PLACE
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/05

----------------- CURRENT----=-------==2-- =cocommmmmmeeeee e YTD- - - o e e v m e o o

ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 81,767 59,280 76,106 591,677 592,800 567,054
Part-Time 13,994 13,167 18,544 106,676 131,670 111,608
Wages-Trade 157,136 93,547 104,414 972,435 935,470 894,377
Auto Allowance 1,971 0 1,971 19,408 0 19,708
Auto Expense 150 2,121 150 1,500 21,210 1,500
Taxes & Benefits 57,376 43,818 45,145 423,334 438,180 378,558
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <149,243> <79,161> <99,822> <940,662> <791,610> <929,900>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 163,151 132,772 146,508 1,174,368 1,327,720 1,042,905
Contracted Security 18,086 19,000 22,319 198,824 190,000 136,533
Contracted Cleaning 1,993 0 0 12,320 o] 951
Other Contracted Services 234 200 155 1,976 2,000 1,238
Travel & Entertainment 816 1,626 1,145 8,935 16,260 10,235
Corporate Travel 0 0 0 <221> 0 2,212
Meetings & Conventions 0 1,958 160 14,047 28,080 9,029
Dues & Subscriptions 42 417 0 2,449 4,170 4,643
Employee Training 2,249 833 0 9,894 8,330 0
Computer Expense 3,820 5,417 4,174 68,986 54,170 36,408
Professional Fees 2,160 2,625 1,920 29,173 26,250 44,117
Marketing & Advertising 1,367 2,467 1,135 26,716 24,670 43,319
Box Office Expenses 560 0 <98> 1,011 o] 834
Small Equipment 631 0 827 2,79 0 2,739
Trash Removal 4,838 3,000 3,243 20,470 30,000 11,797
Equipment Rental 1,586 500 1,344 10,694 5,000 9,258
Snow Removal 0 0 0 ] o] 481
Exterminating 814 500 0 11,083 5,000 1,125
Cleaning 0 3,000 0 0 9,000 0
Construction Costs 0 0 421 2,967 0 24,165
Repairs & Maintenance 24,700 21,721 33,727 164,461 217,210 62,475
Supplies 12,598 19,208 44,736 149,250 192,080 126,267
Bank Service Charges 2,646 750 1,299 12,086 7,500 9,700
Insurance 26,605 16,454 13,518 194,499 164,540 132,991
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 99 0 1,905
Printing & Stationary 0 1,125 581 1,646 11,250 2,490
Office Supplies 260 625 1,369 9,610 6,250 10,147
Postage 469 417 96 1,735 4,170 1,470
Parking Expense 1,660 1,000 1,252 14,161 10,000 18,497
Telephone Long Distance 7,265 6,000 7,452 61,615 60,000 72,417
Utilities 15,695 121,900 103,440 1,273,101 1,348,300 994,183
Base Fee 19,935 19,780 19,354 199,930 197,800 193,543
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <1,500> <833> <1,416> <13,499> <8,330> <7,426>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 209,527 249,690 262,153 2,490,812 2,613,700 1,957,741
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 372,678 382,462 408,660 3,665,180 3,941,420 3,000,645




SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Box Office - Electronic Signage 14,000 14,000 Open
Spotlights 125,000 125,000 Open
Security System Upgrades 39,489 39,489 - Closed
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 9,406 5,594 Closed
Total Arena 193,489 48,895 144,594
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 193,489 48,895 144,594
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,436,412 (1,122,935) 313,477 245,318
Benchmark 1,647,957 (1,388,942) 259,015 1,531
Excess (211,545) 266,007 54,462 243,787
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 239,220 239,219 478,439 464,504
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,795,908 3,407,652 8,203,560 7,412,186
Benchmark Revenue 4,465,338 3,246,912 7,712,250 6,716,238
Revenue Excess 330,570 160,740 491,310 695,948
Incentive Fee ** 66,114 32,148 98,262 139,190
Total SMG Management Fee 305,334 271,367 576,701 603,694

** Incentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2005

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Hank Abate

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity

Item IV.b.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2005

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE

FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS ALLOCATION FOR CAPITAL REPLACEMENT

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER CAPITAL

Comments:

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

112 4 116 17 M
610,381 33,076 643,457 709,200 (65,743)
1,153,654 64,986 1,218,640 1,278,171 (59,531)
1,323,400 77.869 1,401,269 1,635,524 (134,255)
2,477,054 142,855 2,619,909 2,813,695 (193,786)
1,795,899 380,100 2,175,999 1,985,000 190,999
4,272,953 522,955 4,795,908 4,798,695 (2,787)
103,755 18,324 122,079 107,510 (14,569)
164,720 31,429 196,149 193,611 (2,538)
193,498 35,634 229,132 220,064 (68)
1,088,761 137,638 1,226,399 1,192,081 (34,318)
94,693 15,309 110,002 107,120 (2,882)
105,530 12,314 117,844 113,597 (4,247)
34,279 6,565 40,844 36,941 (3,903)
1,118,505 198,542 1,317,047 1,303,597 (13,450)
2,903,741 455755 3,359,496 3,283,521 (75,975)
1,369,212 67,200 1,436,412 1,615,174 (78,762)
1,369,212 67,200 1,436,412 1,516,174 (78,762)

The Arena had a very successful April hosting 4 very solid selling concerts during

the month. The success of April has allowed the Arena to make up the shortfall when Generdl Manager

compared to year to date budget that the Arena has shown over the past few months.

However, the budget calls for 4 concerts to be hosted during the months of May & June

with only 2 schuduled, and a third show that has a slight chance of taking place (not

included in the forecast).

I




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED APRIL 30, 2005

The following schedule summarizes operating results for the current month ending
and the YTD ending June 30, 2005, compared to budget and to the prior year:

MONTH April April April

Actual Budget FY 2004
Number of Events 20 B 10 10
Attendance 122,883 41,000 69,745
Direct Event Income $248,750 $49,256 $87,074
Ancillary Income 255,826 74,159 159,853
Other Income 188,798 165,416 174,030
Indirect Expenses (317,959) (273,002) (336,251)
Net Income $375,415 $15,829 $84,706
YTD YTD 2005 YTD 2005 YTD 2004

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 112 109 113
Attendance 610,381 631,700 632,064
Direct Event Income $1,153,654 $1,107,399 $980,963
Ancillary Income 1,323,400 1,375,769 1,365,147
Other Income 1,795,899 1,654,160 1,686,782
Indirect Expenses (2,903,741) (2,737,520) (2,628,016)
Net Income $1,369,212 $1,399,808 $1,404,876

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in above budget due to the combination of 4 well attended concerts and
the shifting of Disney on Ice out of January into April (exceeded budgeted expectations).

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in above budget due to hosting more events during the month and
the combination of two other factors. The Motley Crue concert hosted during the month

set a new gross concession revenue record of over $98K. In addition, the Griffins concluded
their season, and total commission due the team was over accrued during the season.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in a little over budget. Most of the overage is in peronel expenses
related to overtime incured during a very busy last 10 days of the month and an under
accrual in March for salaried employees.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FACILITY STATEMENT OF INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/05

----------------- 00123221y R e ¢ 1 R
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
EVENT INCOME
DIRECT EVENT INCOME
RENTAL INCOME 298,042 108,750 129,532 1,730,391 1,772,100 1,646,609
SERVICES INCOME <49,291> <59,494> <42,458> <576,736> <664,701> <665,646>
TOTAL DIRECT EVENT INCOME 248,750 49,256 87,074 1,153,654 1,107,399 980,963
ANCILLARY INCOME
FOOD & BEVERAGE 226,690 63,737 121,302 1,112,763 1,144,745 1,152,219
NOVELTY 22,081 7,980 33,931 174,027 194,192 174,547
ELECTRICAL 1,240 0 0 1,840 0 0
OTHER ANCILLARY 5,815 2,442 4,620 34,770 36,832 38,382
TOTAL ANCILLARY INCOME 255,826 74,159 159,853 1,323,400 1,375,769 1,365,147
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 504,577 123,415 246,927 2,477,055 2,483,168 2,346,110
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 188,798 165,416 174,030 1,795,899 1,654,160 1,686,782
ADJUSTED GROSS INCOME 693,374 288,831 420,958 4,272,954 4,137,328 4,032,892
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 12,130 8,834 12,493 103,755 89,840 97,722
FINANCE 25,053 16,009 16,722 164,720 161,590 132,154
MARKETING 27,448 18,963 20,107 193,498 191,130 160,139
LUXURY SEATING 13,903 9,467 9,962 105,530 94,670 74,392
OPERATIONS 124,258 99,089 140,102 1,088,761 993,890 949,063
BOX OFFICE 14,748 8,928 17,223 94,693 89,280 93,462
SKYWALK ADMINISTRATION 1,111 3,079 2,987 34,279 30,790 33,280
OVERHEAD 99,308 108,633 116,657 1,118,505 1,086,330 1,087,804
INDIRECT EXPENSES 317,959 273,002 336,251 2,903,741 2,737,520 2,628,016
NET OPERATING INCOME 375,415 15,829 84,706 1,369,212 1,399,808 1,404,876
OTHER EXPENSES
NET INCOME (LOSS) 375,415 15,829 84,706 1,369,212 1,399,808




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF SERVICES INCOME
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/05

---------------- CURRENT----=-ns-emeeo-n ——wweeueoo-eo.YEAR TO DATE----=--------
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Advertising Billed 31,491 0 26,420 331,327 29,000 273,194
Sponsorship Income 2,000 0 0 27,000 [ 0
Labor Billed 3,060 1,080 2,385 17,828 14,425 13,478
Changeover Setup Billed 28,516 7,600 17,193 124,759 98,600 98,048
Stagehands Billed 76,318 34,000 64,788 417,985 425,900 482,501
Security Billed 28,688 7,600 25,037 156,734 136,900 131,577
Ushers & Tix Takers Billed 17,270 8,300 14,374 98,111 103,750 96,916
Box Office Billed 1,806 400 710 12,567 10,150 7,224
Ticketing Service Billed 15,260 8,000 31,861 116,494 189,850 195,484
Utilities Billed 7,300 0 1,460 15,888 0 7,060
City Police Fire Billed 2,162 1,008 1,740 11,154 11,208 9,136
EMT Medical Billed 4,665 750 3,018 25,091 16,750 17,815
Cleaning Billed 16,989 5,850 11,380 85,576 93,950 79,144
Group Sales Commissions Billed 7,226 0 515 11,620 0 2,763
Telephone Billed 2,935 1,425 2,789 23,625 26,185 31,619
Damages Billed 0 [] 0 0 0 350
Other Production Billed 23,044 4,000 37,498 195,466 155,800 276,799
TOTAL SERVICE INCOME 268,730 80,013 241,167 1,671,224 1,312,468 1,723,108
Advertising Expense 33,746 0 24,181 368,992 64,000 307,390
Sponsorship Expenses 0 0 0 13,600 0 0
Labor Wages 2,601 9218 2,027 14,963 12,720 11,915
Contracted Changeover Setup Expense 34,850 23,795 38,578 259,475 237,649 251,405
Stagehand Wages 90,498 33,796 62,156 420,984 460,769 488,684
Contracted Security Expense 44,314 11,820 30,918 264,834 211,710 236,596
Contracted Ushers & T/T Expense 33,568 26,300 30,545 246,444 258,210 247,131
Ticket Sellers Wages 1,535 0 603 10,682 0 5,811
Ticket Sellers P/R Taxes Bene [} 0 0 0 0 329
Ticket Service Charge Expense 14,193 8,000 23,765 108,407 220,250 182,541
City Police Fire Expense 2,162 1,344 560 13,271 14,630 9,956
EMT Medical Expense 5,303 2,552 3,515 29,380 33,625 29,315
Contracted Cleaning Expense 32,467 26,718 30,635 256,123 288,579 245,343
Insurance Expense 0 0 0 0 4] 30,542
Allocated Telephone Expense 881 264 806 6,968 6,727 10,336
Production Expense 21,905 4,000 35,337 233,839 168,300 331,461
TOTAL SERVICE EXPENSE 318,021 139,507 283,625 2,247,960 1,977,169 2,388,753

NET SERVICE INCOME <49,291> <59,494> <42,458> <576,736> <664,701> <665,646>




VAN ANDEL ARENA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/05

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
CASH
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
PREPAID EXPENSES

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
ACCRUED EXPENSES
DEFERRED INCOME
ADVANCED TIX SALES & DEPOSITS

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

EQUITY
FUNDS REMITTED
FUNDING RECEIVED
RETAINED EARNINGS
NET INCOME (LOSS)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

4,249,254
1,517,650
117,649

5,884,554

2,046,491
510,771
1,041,281
867,998

<1,950,000>
535,433
1,463,368
1,369,212



SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
Month Ending April 30, 2005

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Time Out for Women

Total Accounts Receivable @ 4/30/05

460,156
279,891

13,123
476,417
166,282

78,654

13,475

29,652

1,517,650



VAN ANDEL ARENA
INDIRECT EXPENSE SUMMARY
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/05

----------------- CURRENT- === --m--m------= =meememeemmmmmome oo YTDmm e e e e e e e e o
ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR ACTUAL BUDGET LAST YEAR
Salaries Administration 81,361 56,102 69,628 585,218 561,020 505,251
Part-Time 10,817 3,333 11,795 64,427 33,330 62,220
Wages-Trade 133,724 80,733 101,986 734,503 807,330 744,449
Wages-Trade Part-Time 0 0 0 5,219 0 0
Auto Allowance 577 0 577 5,771 0 5,771
Auto Expense 300 985 300 3,000 9,850 3,000
Taxes & Benefits 52,825 34,180 42,752 376,293 341,800 332,236
Less: Allocation/Reimbursement <117,509> <70,716> <83,991> <623,841> <707,160> <654,206>
TOTAL LABOR COSTS 162,094 104,617 143,046 1,150,591 1,046,170 998,720
Contracted Security 18,247 19,000 17,795 189,444 190,000 200,175
Contracted Cleaning 2,098 2,292 2,098 22,983 22,920 27,314
Ocher Contracted Services 314 300 349 3,795 3,000 3,210
Travel & Entertainment 2,282 558 1,200 9,559 5,580 8,043
Corporate Travel 0 625 0 0 6,250 "]
Meetings & Conventions 0 350 [ 5,139 11,000 1,071
Dues & Subscriptions 756 208 199 8,102 2,080 5,990
Employee Training 2,249 750 0 3,074 7,500 250
Computer Expense 5,424 5,417 5,483 67,710 54,170 49,855
Professional Fees 2,625 2,375 3,535 24,156 23,750 27,672
Marketing & Advertising 7,711 7,500 3,706 62,586 75,000 45,037
Box Office Expenses 107 0 169 <131> 0 <282>
Small Equipment 0 0 0 4,563 0 3,389
Trash Removal 2,604 1,250 3,933 18,741 12,500 19,310
Equipment Rental y 1,335 1,300 1,835 12,442 13,000 12,131
Landscaping 0 292 0 0 2,920 0
Exterminating 248 333 495 2,475 3,330 2,475
Cleaning 0 900 0 4,050 9,000 9,083
Repairs & Maintenance 13,098 9,333 16,384 130,000 93,330 69,794
Supplies 9,025 12,841 25,207 131,018 128,410 107,414
Bank Service Charges 1,097 1,000 904 7,133 10,000 7,781
Rent Expense 0 0 [] 0 1] 307
Insurance A 23,861 13,269 11,868 139,766 132,690 113,882
Licenses & Fees 0 0 0 0 4] 72
Printing & Stationary 0 1,750 4,880 6,029 17,500 4,880
Office Supplies 1,213 1,000 3,414 13,438 10,000 11,624
Postage 1,242 1,000 707 9,739 10,000 10,839
Parking Expense 4,160 1,500 4,061 23,297 15,000 21,751
Telephone Long Distance 3,636 3,000 11,382 59,929 30,000 58,635
Utilities 34,644 63,567 57,701 632,714 635,670 652,603
Base Fee 19,935 19,780 19,354 198,769 197,800 193,543
Common Area Expense <1,166> <2,730> <2,648> <30,403> <27,300> <27,615>
Less: Allocated/Reimbursement <B881> <375> <806> <6,968> <3,750> <10,939>
TOTAL MATERIAL AND SERVICES 155,865 168,385 193,205 1,753,151 1,691,350 1,629,296
TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 317,959 273,002 336,251 2,903,741 2,737,520 2,628,016

7



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Capital Expenditures & Management Fee Summary

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2005

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
Budget Expended Balance Project Status
Arena
Box Office - Electronic Signage 14,000 14,000 Open
Spotlights 125,000 125,000 Open
Security System Upgrades 39,489 39,489 - Closed
Speaker System - Main Entrance 15,000 9,406 5,594 Closed
Total Arena 193,489 438,895 144,594
DeVos Place
Total DeVos Place - - -
Grand Total Capital Improvements 193,489 48,895 144,594
MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,436,412  (1,122,935) 313,477 245,318
Benchmark 1,647,957 (1,388,942) 259,015 1,531
Excess (211,545) 266,007 54,462 243,787
Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2004
Estimate Estimate Estimate Act/Est
Base Fee 239,220 239,219 478,439 464,504
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,795,908 3,407,652 8,203,560 7,412,186
Benchmark Revenue 4,465,338 3,246,912 7,712,250 6,716,238
Revenue Excess 330,570 160,740 491,310 695,948
Incentive Fee ** 66,114 32,148 98,262 139,190
Total SMG Management Fee 305,334 271,367 576,701 603,694

** [ncentive fee is 20% of the first $1 million in excess, 25% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



05/13/05
Accrual Basis Balance Sheet

As of April 30, 2005

e Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority Item IV.b.ii

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1020 - Cash - Construction - Max Saver
1030 - Cash - Construction
1050 - Operations - Cash
9991 - Cash - Retainage

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets

1070 - Kent County - Operating

1080 - Kent County - Capital Replcmnt
Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Vehicles
Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilitles
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable
Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabllities
2200 - Accrued Expenses
9992 - Retainage Payable
Total Other Current Liabllities

Total Current Liabllities
Total Liabilities

Equity
3000 - Opening Bal Equity
Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Note: Negative net income a result of construction
expenditures. These will be capitalized at year
end and will reverse the negative netincome
reported.

Apr 30, 05
]

1,233,630.26
404,589.58
875,099.88
289,014.26
2,802,333.98

5,014,884.34
11,071,472.19
16,086,356.53

18,888,680.51

23,470.00
23,470.00

18,912,160.51

37,652,892.39
-19,213,098.71
18,439,893.68

18,912,160.51




12:08 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

05/12/05 Reconciliation Detail
1020 - Cash - Construction - Max Saver, Period Ending 04/30/2005

Type Date Num Name Memo Clr Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 1,230,872.52
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Deposit 4/30/2005 Interest X 2,757.74 2,757.74
Total Deposits and Credits 2,757.74 2,757.74

Total Cleared Transactions 2,757.74 2,757.74
Cleared Balance 2,757.74 1,233,630.26
Register Balance as of 04/30/2005 2,757.74 1,233,630.26
Ending Balance 2,757.74 1,233,630.26




12:20 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

05/12/05 Reconciliation Detail
1030 - Cash - Construction, Period Ending 04/30/2005

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 605,131.58
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 7 items
Bill Pmt -Check 3/14/2005 2076 Jerry G Fellinger X -600.00 -600.00
Bill Pmt -Check 3/28/2005 2079 Nextel Communicat... X -63.06 -663.06
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 2083 Midwest Food Equi... X -146.50 -809.56
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 2081 Dale H. Sommers X -12,960.00 -13,769.56
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 2080 Custer Workplace |... X -1,265.00 -15,034.56
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 2084 Nextel Communicat... X -62.64 -15,097.20
Bilt Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 2087 Jon McDonald X -1,500.00 -16,597.20
Total Checks and Payments -16,597.20 -16,597.20
Deposits and Credits - 1 item
Deposit 4/30/2005 Interest X 1,218.22 1,218.22
Total Deposits and Credits 1,218.22 1,218.22
Total Cleared Transactions -15,378.98 -15,378.98
Cleared Balance -15,378.98 589,752.60
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 3 items
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 2082 Global Computer S... -9,782.02 -9,782.02
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 2086 HSBC Business Sol... -918.00 -10,700.02
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 2085 Erhardt-Hunt/Joint ... -174,463.00 -185,163.02
Total Checks and Payments -185,163.02 -185,163.02
Total Uncleared Transactions -185,163.02 -185,163.02
Register Balance as of 04/30/2005 -200,542.00 404,589.58
New Transactions
Checks and Payments - 2 items
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 2090 Custer Workplace ... -14,760.18 -14,760.18
8ill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 2091 Dale H. Sommers -5,880.00 -20,640.18
Total Checks and Payments -20,640.18 -20,640.18
Total New Transactions -20,640.18 -20,640.18
Ending Balance -221,182.18 383,949.40




12:42 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

05/12/05 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 04/30/2005

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 1,163,859.97
Cleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 16 items

Bill Pmt -Check 3/28/2005 6099 Priority Health X -398.73 -398.73
Bill Pmt -Check 3/28/2005 6098 ICMA Retirement C... X -50.00 -448.73
Bill Pmt -Check 3/28/2005 6097 ICMA Retirement C... X -250.92 -699.65
Bill Pmt -Check 3/28/2005 6096 Dickinson Wright P... X -728.50 -1,428.15
Check 4/1/2005 10100 Susan M. Waddell X -1,383.93 -2,812.08
Check 4/1/2005 10100 Susan M. Waddell X -754.30 -3,566.38
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 6101 DTE Energy X -602.96 -4,169.34
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 6103 ICMA Retirement C... X -250.92 -4,420.26
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 6104 ICMA Retirement C... X -50.00 -4,470.26
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 6106 Rapid Hot Coffee S... X -27.68 -4,497.94
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 6102 Grand Rapids City ... X -32,748.25 -37,246.19
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 6100 Consumers Energy X -35,039.72 -72,285.91
Bill Pmt -Check 4/14/2005 6105 Kent Count Dept of ... X -154,858.84 -227,144.75
Check 4/15/2005 10101 Susan M. Waddell X -884.24 -228,028.99
Check 4/15/2005 10101 Susan M. Waddell X -1,383.93 -229,412.92
Check 4/29/2005 10102 Susan M. Waddell X -754.30 -230,167.22
Total Checks and Payments -230,167.22 -230,167.22
Deposits and Credits - 2 items
Deposit 4/1/2005 Arena parking revenu... X 9,018.00 9,018.00
Deposit 4/30/2005 Interest X 2,253.62 11,271.62
Total Deposits and Credits 11,271.62 11,271.62
Total Cleared Transactions -218,895.60 -218,895.60
Cleared Balance -218,895.60 944,964.37
Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 7 items
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6112 Priority Health -398.73 -398.73
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6111 ICMA Retirement C... -50.00 -448.73
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6110 |ICMA Retirement C... -250.92 -699.65
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6109 Grand Rapids City ... -10,197.08 -10,896.73
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6107 Consumers Energy -56,394.43 -67,291.16
Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 6108 Dickinson Wright P... -1,189.40 -68,480.56
Check 4/29/2005 10102 Susan M. Waddell -1,383.93 -69,864.49
Total Checks and Payments -69,864.49 -69,864.49
Total Uncleared Transactions -69,864.49 -69,864.49
Register Balance as of 04/30/2005 -288,760.09 875,099.88
New Transactions
Checks and Payments - 9 items i
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 6114 Arthur J. Gallagher ... -10,268.00 -10,268.00
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 6115 Consumers Energy -33,331.14 -43,599.14
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 6117 Grand Rapids City ... -10,564.31 -54,163.45
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 6118 ICMA Retirement C... -501.84 -54,665.29
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 6119 ICMA Retirement C... -100.00 -54,765.29
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 6120 Kent Count Dept of ... -45,904.43 -100,669.72
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 6121 Rapid Hot Coffee S... -27.68 -100,697.40
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 6113 Accident Fund Com... -720.00 -101,417.40
Bill Pmt -Check 5/13/2005 6116 DTE Energy -1,312.05 -102,729.45
Total Checks and Payments -102,729.45 -102,729.45



12:42 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

05/12/05 Reconciliation Detail
1050 - Operations - Cash, Period Ending 04/30/2005

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance
Deposits and Credits - 1 item
Deposit 5/3/2005 Van Andel Arena fand... 9,018.00 9,018.00
Total Deposits and Credits 9,018.00 9,018.00
Total New Transactions -93,711.45 -93,711.45
Ending Balance -382,471.54 781,388.43




12:15 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

05/12/05 Reconciliation Detail
9991 - Cash - Retainage, Period Ending 04/30/2005

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 331,937.04
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Deposit 4/30/2005 Interest X 515.22 515.22
Total Deposits and Credits 515.22 515.22

Total Cleared Transactions 515.22 515.22
Cleared Balance 515.22 332,452.26

Uncleared Transactions
Checks and Payments - 1 item

Bill Pmt -Check 4/28/2005 1205 Erhardt-Hunt/Joint ... -43,438.00 -43,438.00
Total Checks and Payments -43,438.00 -43,438.00
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Deposit 12/14/2004 Deposit 0.00
Total Deposits and Credits 0.00 0.00

Total Uncleared Transactions -43,438.00 -43,438.00

Register Balance as of 04/30/2005 -42,922.78 289,014.26

Ending Balance -42,922.78 289,014.26




1:01 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

05/12/05 Reconciliation Detail
1070 - Kent County - Operating, Period Ending 03/31/2005

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 5,006,964.16
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Deposit 3/1/2005 Interest X 7,920.18 7,920.18
Total Deposits and Credits 7,920.18 7,920.18

Total Cleared Transactions 7,920.18 7,920.18
Cleared Balance 7,920.18 5,014,884.34
Register Balance as of 03/31/2005 7,920.18 5,014,884.34
Ending Balance 7,920.18 5,014,884.34




12:58 PM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

05/12105 Reconciliation Detail
1080 - Kent County - Capital Replcmnt, Period Ending 03/31/2005

Type Date Num Name Memo Cir Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 11,048,749.07
Cleared Transactions
Deposits and Credits - 1 item

Deposit 3/1/2005 Interest X 22,723.12 22,723.12
Total Deposits and Credits 22,723.12 22,723.12

Total Cleared Transactions 22,723.12 22,723.12
Cleared Balance 22,723.12 11,071,472.19
Register Balance as of 03/31/2005 22,723.12 - 11,071,472.19
Ending Balance 22,723.12 11,071,472.19




2:38 PM

05/12/05
Accrual Basis

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Income
4030 -
4040 -
4500 -
4530 -
4540 -
4545 -
4550 -

Profit & Loss

July 2004 through April 2005

Federal Support
Private Support
Interest on Investments
Facility Operations
Land Lease

Parking Revenues
Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense
5000 -
5010 -
5020 -
6000 -
6050 -
6060 -
6065 -
6068 -
6070 -
6100 -
6200 -
6300 -
6410 -
8000 -

Architectural and Engineering
Construction Material Testing
Construction in Progress-GMP
Professional Services

Project Mgt/Owner’'s Rep
Other Contractual Services
Pedestrian Safety

Parking Management

Facility Management Fees
Other Supplies & Expenses
Capital Replacement Projects
Utilities Expense

Interest & Paying Agent Fees
Personal Services

Total Expense

Net Income

Jul '04 - Apr 05

3,5628,884.00
2,204,000.00
339,308.16
2,300,000.00
80,885.00
478,834.00
13,848.00

8,945,759.16

4,142,723.63
64,760.62
19,270,696.00
53,834.51
187,182.50
1,901,650.48
44,976.91
196,599.00
139,190.00
26,789.02
139,133.25
1,929,144.62
750.00
61,427.33

28,158,857.87

-19,213,098.71



:1/ AM
05/18/05
Accrual Basis

Profit & Loss by Fund
July 2004 through April 2005

Convention Center

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Income
4030 - Federal Support
4040 - Private Support
4500 - Interest on Investments
4530 - Facility Operations
4540 - Land Lease
4545 - Parking Revenues
4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue
Total Income

Expense
5000 - Architectural and Engineering
5010 - Construction Materlal Testing
5020 - Construction in Progress-GMP
6000 - Professional Services
6001 - Accounting/Auditing Services
6040 - Legal Services
Total 6000 - Professional Services

6050 - Project Mgt/Owner's Rep
6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety
6068 - Parking Management
6070 - Facllity Management Fees
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses
6010 - Bank Fees
6020 - Computer Services
6030 - Insurance-Property/Liability
6110 - Meeting Expense
6120 - Supplies
6130 - Postage/Express
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses - Other
Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301 - Electricity

6310 - Natural Gas

6320 - Steam

6330 - Telephone

6340 - Water & Sewer
Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

6410 - Interest & Paying Agent Fees

Admin & Capital Replacement

(Construction) (Operations) TOTAL
3,528,884.00 0.00 3,528,884.00
2,204,000.00 0.00 2,204,000.00

300,201.24 39,106.92 339,308.16
0.00 2,300,000.00 2,300,000.00

0.00 80,885.00 80,885.00

0.00 478,834.00 478,834.00

600.00 13,248.00 13,848.00
6,033,685.24 2,912,073.92 8,945,759.16
4,142,723.63 0.00 4,142,723.63
64,760.62 0.00 64,760.62
19,270,696.00 0.00 19,270,696.00
0.00 41,216.80 41,216.80

360.00 12,267.71 12,617.71
350.00 53,484.51 53,834.51
186,762.50 0.00 186,762.50
1,881,239.00 20,831.48 1,902,070.48
0.00 44,976.91 44,976.91

0.00 196,599.00 196,599.00

0.00 139,190.00 139,190.00

21.90 0.00 21.90

0.00 349.00 349.00

0.00 19,829.74 19,829.74

0.00 600.44 600.44
4,238.60 1,465.97 5,704.57
0.00 170.00 170.00

0.00 113.37 113.37
4,260.50 22,528.52 26,789.02
0.00 139,133.25 139,133.25
27,811.33 920,246.57 948,057.90
0.00 19,301.85 19,301.85

0.00 860,170.35 860,170.35

877.58 0.00 877.58

0.00 100,736.94 100,736.94
28,688.91 1,900,455.71 1,929,144.62
0.00 750.00 750.00



Hihe AW Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Profit & Loss by Fund
July 2004 through April 2005

05/18/05
Accrual Basis

8000 - Personal Services

8001 - Employee Wages

8030 - Employee Benefits

8000 - Personal Services - Other
Total 8000 - Personal Services

Total Expense

Net Income

Convention Center

Admin & Capital Replacement

(Construction) (Operations) TOTAL
0.00 44,751.92 44,751.92
0.00 14,584.41 14,584.41
0.00 2,091.00 2,091.00
0.00 61,427.33 61,427.33
25,679,481.16 2,579,376.71 28,158,857.87
-19,545,795.92 332,697.21 -19,213,098.71

-11-



J.&Jd AW

05/18/05

Accrual Basis

Income

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

July 2004 through April 2005

4030 - Federal Support

4040 - Private Support

4300 - Interest on Investments
4530 - Faclility Operations
4540 - Land Lease

4545 - Parking Revenues

4550 - Miscellaneous Revenue

Total Income

Expense

5000 - Architectural and Engineering
5010 - Construction Material Testing

§020 - Construction in Progress-GMP
6000 - Professional Services

6001 -
6040 -

Accounting/Auditing Services
Legal Services

Total 6000 - Professional Services

6050 - Project Mgt/Owner's Rep
6060 - Other Contractual Services
6065 - Pedestrian Safety

6068 - Parking Management

6070 - Facility Management Fees
6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6010 -
6020 -
6030 -
6110 -
6120 -
6130 -
6100 -

Bank Fees

Computer Services
Insurance-Property/Liability
Meeting Expense

Supplies

Postage/Express

Other Supplies & Expenses - Other

Total 6100 - Other Supplies & Expenses

6200 - Capital Replacement Projects
6300 - Utilities Expense

6301

+ Electricity
6310 -
6320 -
6330 -
6340 -

Natural Gas
Steam
Telephone
Water & Sewer

Total 6300 - Utilities Expense

6410 - Interest & Paying Agent Fees
6500 - DID Assessment

Admin & Capital Replacement

(Operations)

Jul '04 - Apr 05 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

0.00

0.00
39,106.92 18,332.00 20,774.92 213.33%
2,300,000.00 2,008,070.00 291,930.00 114.54%
80,885.00 102,500.00 -21,615.00 78.91%
478,834.00 538,750.00 -59,916.00 88.88%
13,248.00 12,500.00 748,00 105.98%
2,912,073.92 2,680,152.00 231,921.92 108.65%

0.00

0.00

0.00
41,216.80 51,668.00 -10,451.20 79.77%
12,267.71 33,332.00 -21,064.29 36.81%
53,484.51 85,000.00 -31,615.49 62.92%

0.00

20,831.48
44,976.91 71,668.00 -26,691.09 62.76%
196,599.00 214,177.00 -17,578.00 91.79%

139,190.00

0.00

349.00
19,829.74 5,300.00 14,5629.74 374.15%
600.44 668.00 -67.56 89.89%
1,465.97 918.00 547.97 159.69%

170.00

113.37
22,528.52 6,886.00 16,642.52 327.16%
139,133.256 161,240.00 -22,106.75 86.29%
920,246.57 898,332.00 21,914.57 102.44%
19,301.85 62,500.00 -43,198.15 30.88%
860,170.35 830,874.00 29,296.35 103.53%

0.00
100,736.94 111,168.00 -10,431.06 90.62%
1,900,455.71 1,902,874.00 -2,418.29 99.87%

750.00
0.00 38,100.00 -38,100.00 0.0%

-12-



9:23 AM Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

05/18105
Accrual Basis

8000 - Personal Services

8001 - Employee Wages

8030 - Employee Benefits

8000 - Personal Services - Other
Total 8000 - Personal Services

Total Expense

Net income

Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
July 2004 through April 2005

Admin & Capital Replacement

(Operations)

Jul ‘04 - Apr 05
L]

Budget

$ Over Budget
. ]

% of Budget
L ]

44,751.92 45,280.00 -528.08 98.83%
14,584.41 15,779.00 -1,194.59 92.43%
2,091.00
61,427.33 61,059.00 368.33 100.6%
2,579,376.71 2,541,004.00 38,372.71 101.51%
332,697.21 139,148.00 193,549.21 239.1%

-13-



Item IV. b. iii.

PRESENTED AS INFORMATION ONLY

DE VOS PLACE

OPERATING BUDGET
FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2006

***PROPOSED 5/19/05%**

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Glen Mon

Hank Abate

Gary McAneney

John Szudzik

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

GM&>

An SMG Managed Facllity




(891 '2€) (se6'zz1’'t)  (cor'ssi’t)  (o6i'eve) (Zev'edl)  (€26°22l)  85L'69 £v8'19 (609'62L) (bb's8)  (80M'lP)  €Si'EL (pee'2vy)  (89L°16)  (68€'961) (SSOT) IWOINI ALINIOVS L3N
{626'v0E) 185°0ESy  91GGESy  OPBEvy  OLGGSE  91G68E  OLSL9y  915€8y  O15Z6v  9IS'6by  91520F  91§'8SE  OIS'EEE  9lS'leE  9ig'6eE SASNIdX3 LOIYION! TVLOL
(15228) €80'6LL'C  PESLECC  SYC 9Ll  666PL  666LLL  666'ObC 66619  666'L.Z  666'LEZ  666'06L  666'19)  666'9EL  666'1EL  66Y'IE} QV3aHY3N0
6LL't) 8ze'e8 101's8 ¥80°L €60°L £60'2 €60'2 £60'L £60°L £60°'L £60°L £60'2 €60°2 £60'L £60'L 301440 X08
(L28'61) 516'028 982'9¥8 ole'z9L  91£'69 91£'69 91£'69 oie'zL 91€'69 91£'69 91£'09 91E'LS gIe'Ls 9LE'LS oLE'LS $301AY3S IN3A3
(eov'vsL)  Lb'6L6 0l16'€20'L  982'88 ¥82'88 ¥82'L6 ¥9z'98 ¥82'26 ¥8z'e8 ¥82'L6 y8z's8 ¥82'88 ¥82'88 ¥82'16 v8.'68 SNOLLYY3dO
(858'95) z81'881 0¥0's6l obz'oL ysz'ol ysZ'9L psz'oL ysz'olL ps2'91L ysZ'ol ysz'9l ¥52'9l vsZ'9) ysz'oL vsz'9l $3VS
(biv'zy) 692'¥S £b2'99 186'S 295's 295's 295'S 296'S 295'S 295'S 295's 295'S 296'S 295'S 295'S ONILINEYW
L 810012 162'20Z ¥og'al 168'9% 168'01 168'91 158'9) 158'9) 158'9) 258'9) 158'91 158'9) 158'91L 158'9L JONVNIA
(ost'vt) SYE'6LL 508°€EL PrL'LL 151 1S4 1511 1S 1SL'LL 1SHLE 1SLLL LSLL 1S 1511 1SLLL 3ALLND3XA
S3ISNIdX3 LOIMIONI
Y777 ZG9L0¥'CE  €1p'089'C  0S9°00L  v60'991  £66992  PIZ'IES  6SESPS L0679  ZyO'lOE  BOL'GSE  699°LEP  2pL'98L  8pL'6EC  LZI'EEL INOONI SSOHD a3Lsnray
86€0S 209'201 000854 €91'E} L91°Eh 191°E) 191°¢h I91°SY 191°¢} L91'EL 91'EL 191°€} 291°ch 191°L 191°E} INOONI ¥3HLO TV10L
0002} 000'ZL 000} 000°L 000°L 000t 000'} 000} 000°L 000'} 000't 000'L 000t 000'} ANOINI ¥IHLO
000'2Y 000°2Y 005'c 00s'c 005'€ 00s'c 005t 005t 005'c 005's 00s'c 005'e 005'e 005'c 13NY3LNI
000'08 000'08 £99'0 199'9 199'9 199'9 199'9 1999 199'9 199'9 1999 199'9 199'9 199'9 SIALLNIONI L3XDLL
000'¥2 000'vZ 0002 000'Z 0002 000'2 000'C 000’2 0002 000'C 000’2 000'2 000'2 000'Z IWOONI LSTHILNI
INOINI ONLLYYHIJO YIHLO
£9€'2ze 0S0°00S'€  €10°225'€  18¥°L8 126'26L  928'€SZ  20L'8LS  26L'CES  OPL6VE  GLE'LVE  Ipeeve  c0S8Ly  GL6'2LL 18692 096'6l) IWOONI IN3A3 TVLOL
1££'06 GS6'6PE’}  98COVY'L  lev'Ee 119 18688 89€'18l  ¥86'98L  [BS'SOL  B8S9'€E9L  L96'86)  129'/9L  Z80'E8 162'L0)  198'6S INOINI ANVTIIONY TV.LOL
051'652 051652 [ g 056’71 0506} 0s.'st 00v'slL 00161 050'8Z 00£'8 00£'2€ 009°z2 00562 0sL'zh AIN3WdIND3
99Z's1e 99Z'GLE zes'e 292's 19251 9z'e9 08Z'Ly 9,85t p1E'82 252’2 z04'se 260'EL 20L'6) 05€'2 IVIRLIET3
op9'vLZ or9'vez 089'L qL'e 091'92 9eL've 892'65 +p6'8Z 21651 809'vb 896'¥E oro'vL 025'6 265’y YOLWH0O3a
009'sT 009'6Z 000'2 0s6'} 0sL'2 000'2 009'c 005°t 00Z'} 000'Z 009'2 005't 0sZ'z 0sZ'z ALI3AON
S86'EVY S86°chY ooz'ch §59'2¢ 09t'0Z 09p'62 005'pE §6L'62 0.2'v8 SY9'zy ope'ss 00008 ost'sy 052'62 ONRIALYD
sya'izh SPe'LZ $29'2 26T 00e's SLL'PE 9ep'se ZIp'pL 216'S 291’6 LEY 0s8't $18') sl9'e SNOISSIONOD
INOINI AYVTIIONY
260'2EL G60'0G6'L  lZL'Z80'T  0%0'%S 08’16 6E9'V9L  6EL9EE  80ZEVE  ESL'PPC  LlZ'¥8L  pl2evl 188’05 €68'68 »8Z'6lL  £60'09 IWOONI IN3A3 193310 TVLOL
8ce'sth 8£e'8LL 09b's 08.'Y 6ee'LL 6€4'6) 802'LE £5¥'S £20'L [ZZK) 1€8'5L 89€'Z ¥98'z £6P'E INOINI IDINY3S
68L'c96') 68L'€96'L  009'8Y 004'98 00S'€GL  009'ZLE  00S'LLE  00L'8€2  vPL'ZLL  OSY'PEL  050'6€2  S26'L8 ozv'oll  009'9§ NI
IWOONI IN3A3 10391a
890'85 1S6'E19 $20'229 008'z2 002'LZ 0sZ'sy 002'8Zk  0S9'0Z  00L'8L $2E'65 ooL'sy 00Z'%9 00s'sZ 00e'sz 009'22 JONVANILLY
({}] 89y 199 €2 ] o €5 (44 47 1 6¢ 29 €€ e [>4 SIONVYWHOSYIJ/SAVA LNIAT
VA I3viis3 13%ana NNP AV ¥dv dYW g34d Nvr o3a AON 190 d3s onv nre
S00Z A4 9002 Ad
9002 ‘0¢ Jung Surpug Jea) [easty

JudwI}BIS JWodu] ped|
Apsoqiny Buaay/uogmAue)) Ajuno)) Jud)y - spideyf puess)

(133u3)) puesn) 28] $0A3(Q - OINS



Arswiwmng J03ay
Auogqiny RuAIY/UOBEIATY) Ajaao)) Ju) - spidey puran
e 50A3Q - DS

69¢'05 056'SYT 6189252 059051 33 35 009'L1Z €r5'e8 ZL0'or 025000t 05CZTIY 53 TIVH NOLLIBIHYS - V0L
[ ere's2y (X 05186 £OL'ee X1 =1 - fciv's) I 050°LS [ Y310 TVLOL
17508 SOR'SHL 3 00629 (X 0492 00z'6Y 2oszy) G 059’02 7 SOURSON ¥ SAUIeS
&5 sev't $L0°2 005 - - se - 005's 009 s 100495 YBjH - $33uRq
(e52'9) [ 1Y om's 005 soy o 005't 09t 0057 0007 13 960103 - s20URg
{ssa'oc) T sic'le 0sZ'44 096'9 ure 055'0Z o' 009'0Y 009'7) ot Lo
esL's 169'05 098’05 005t 060'9 o8zt 0sz'ez ov'h 000'9L 000'y 3 ai0di09
we's So8's osi'st 000's - - ] - 09 0000} 00s'9 z JUBDIUIWWODUORENPRID
(ssz'ey) £29'79 8081 000 o't 20’ 051'9 - s 00z'2 0oL 3 000’4 #9pun Kanbuzg
(roe'cs) WS ai'es 00s°zh or't z6c [ - 999 000's 00T’ z 000t 2940 Konbuzg
(osz) 0082 o5z’ - - - - - - 05T’ ooy 2 Bugisay
[Gsszen) Z5r'L16 $IZBLL 008’0} 021’99 98e'b2 SSL°04 5T 'y 002505 008'91Z or SMOHS 9Nand v101|
(ros’os) vo8'08 - - - - - SMOyS Aiqnd o8I
- - - - - - - $99q0H @ 8oy
- - - - - - - - - ojEsdng
7L 108'ts szo'ss orL's 096 see't (0s) 000'sS 000’02 4 SOPIYIA [rUoRERIIRY|
(he0'se) [274% - - - . - . - - - Bupy10mMpoo|
09't 009'sPL osz'avl 002 as'’s 080'0L 0sL'sE 0992 000'304 005'2 s oys wog)
(139'02) LIS - - - - - - - - - - sophscion
v22'5) 1ee'st 09's 001t (1] 2 SL 005 osy 005’8 0007 z s
(e59'9) o599 . - - - - - - - - - uogwanpy
Use't) S92y toL'or 00§ (] [ 2955 8962 000'08 006'Z1 € MOYS JwD Wosn))
852 oy nezy [ ves'y 2147 000’ 't 000'5Z 0s6'01 < MOYS 10D
(se182) 'y zsT'el o005 71 0952 - cog't s 000'cH osz'sh v OESIMOUS YRID
ue's eBL'sSE 090's94 oov't onv'ol 095°'0¢ osL's 000'Sh etk 0008 000'0S v BupioniL, | saowiainy|
sr1y) osr'ee so8e 0co't o0L's oooy sos 74 05T oos'sl 0002 < uawopm|
c0L's 59’801 208'YLL 005 00L's ore's 528 0002} 69 000's2 000’0y v UOREAISNY P $POOD Buguods)
(00Z°2) (335 ze'se oosY 'y (1 - osz's -8 ooz'zz ooL's 4 smoys Buippom
(osy'c) YL SSL'0LL 000’} osv'sh oYL - 0SL'01 905's 000'0L 0006 y UPpIED) ¥ KUOH
620021 €55°5EL 'L STHTNED 008’6y 500'88) L8l X TS z0l2h [ [k 12h SMOHSIAVALLSNOLLNIANOD V10|
(cee'28} [ 1] =473 0ss't 63z’ oar's 05z - 2 ose'os 00¢'s [ SmoySOPRIL IR
®e'I51 oze'ish 000"t or's oov'oy o0s'2 000'9 - coo'oy 000's z Bupiompoom,
€19’ Ly on'Te 009 060'9 o'z s sL 005’0 000z 14 s
[ ] "'y - - - - - - - - - aRs|
9567¢ e 099’y 0989 009 65 000' ] SOIGOH 7 s4oL
Te'ss we'ss 000's zes'y [ 4 ose'c 000'0¢ 005t} L snoBay
- - - - - - - - - Buynend
(zsz'28) T RIod
ez oro'sl 05522 000’ ozzs o9c's - - 05821 o0r's H sof10d
SST'h 7% aue's osz [ 7373 osz's 005's 4 000’6} 009t z e P wnoroned
5162 SI182T - s [ sz - 005°% 00z 3 S{EINecsuLTY Y|
[ 5820 144 005's 0s's 002's o5y - ° 009'22 00y ] 2R PRI 2 ISP
205°28 205°21 - 20T 1] sit - - 005’9 00s'} < hacca il
wr'e Tss'er 9805 (.33 113 089’13 00L'T 005 [ 000’0y 00s'L < Bupuspsep ¥ Budeospue
039y 09908 oSS 000't osgy ®neT 008'zh . ] 00554 oor'y s souminsu)f
orc'sy 080'HL o2r'es - orzt 002’ osr'12 - - 000'0¢ 0009 [ JumusBnog)|
sEr'ee [ 413 - ovz'y oze't S8 - oo¥'2 002"} z Ausnpuj jeaung|
(se0'se) 099’90z sze'e9t ooz's 5718 ove'se sTV'L - osc's SL6'26 ooK'et ] UORNGIRIQ ¢ BuIsSI30Id POO
122 191’89 esv'es o0L'L [-171% oaz's sz8 co0's (ssv) 000'c9 006's ] JUMRSRICH B MMInIL
- - - - - - - - - - - uoRsMoId I3 B 8413
285 £00'4T ses'2z - osy'e (1244 si¢ - . 005'47 0092 ] Bupaoubu3|
(srz'os) ser'aez £52'052 0s9'Z [~ y1% eov'zz sis'ee Fiy s 000254 000’0t [ uogeonp3
reLvy) sy cr's 005 609 - sor - ] st [ b musg
ey 18494 s50'1T osL - - 73 - soL oor'zL 000'9 £ swoumg
LS [T7x {3 ois'sh [ e 030’9 si¢ S8 {osy) 00004 009't 2 uogonnsuo) ¢ BuPINg
(re's) wo'oy esv'er 0s8's Ty 00z'c 005'2 . 174 005'5L 008’y 14 2523 Jmy g Anweg
rs1'e2) L8 4 - . - - . - - - - - Bupueg
[ 72443 o'z 09T ooy (1] oog'y osL's s28 (se8) 000'9s 000'9 14 SUOREIIOSTY|
zse'eh =esy 00 229 0z 009 14 (s9) 002’8 000’4 z Bujusey g aunynouby|
S00Z Ad 9002 AJ ouoou) = Swaou) owoou| SuIoou) Susoou) =] Ere=T) SOUTPUSHY RUBAY STIVR L18IHX3|

ONVRIVA IWOINI IWOONI Koron Bujsged uoissIU0) SRS musy P ON

AN3AS N3N 9002

9007 ‘0f Jung Buypag Jeap e



"wm _ ssc'66z T _ sirezs'e _ 051’652 99TG1E [ 373 009'sT Ses'try sYo'LzL X soL'coa’t S20°2L9 197 SONIGUINE TIV - L0
svoe ] veo'see 00 00% o wez'e 0952 Sarenl 3 7T sioest 3 WOGHTIVA/TIVH SOA3Q - TVA0L
z65'cy 655'22) 2.5 ¥1} [ 14 4 202'ch oec's SS2'8L - 519'9) $L1'ss s29'8) sy TTVWS - L3NONVE WOOHTIVE|
svi'rsh e ze5'25) 052's2 (5 18 ozL's oSl - (oszy) 000'e oor'sh st DUV - L3NDNVE NOOYTTVE
o' w sz 05z - o008 - o0z'L - - 000' 009t s SONIQTIM
0t9's9 sew'ect oYz 00Zvh - o0s'sh - 00591 zL0'0r oLl ooz'sy [
tyL2'L8) 89’05z $90'e81 ose'2b - 009't 080’ 9859 etLL 00Z'Z9b 006’98 ]
(sey'sy) vic'ons siort oos'y 005°T . sue's 000’22 000°501 000'09 or
(c05'2) ots'0s sso'er 00s'y - - [71] 099's 000'9¢ co0's ]
(89s's) oyzT'eL 089'29 000’7 - - - 0522 ocL's 00LYS 000'9) [}

S00Z Ad 9002 AJ 3WODNI SWOONI SHOINI 3WOON! NOINI 3WOINI IWOONI FWODNI 3ONVO SIN3A3

FONVRIVA FNOINI L] ANWAINDI  TVORLOTITI LIVHOLNY ALT3AON IVINSY Nauy 300N
AN3AZ iNaA3 QNvao0d  U3N

9002 ‘0€ sunp Buipu3 iea) o3
Aiswwng jusag
Rponny BUAYNORUIALSY Auncd Jusy - spidey puri
sou1d SOARQ - DS



SMG - DeVos Place (Grand Center)

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Indirect Expense Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2006

Budget Estimate
F/Y 2006 F/Y 2005 Variance

Salaries - Full Time 1,353,804 1,209,380 (144,429)
Salaries Part Time 842,972 828,805 (14,167)
Auto Allowance 23,650 25,090 1,440
Payroll Taxes 212,427 199,228 (13,199)
Employee Benefits 218,467 208,327 (10,140)
Pension 59,108 57,217 (1,891)
Union Expenses 70,500 68,016 (2,484)
Allocated Salaries (1,113,946) (1,087,362) 26,584

Total Labor Costs 1,666,982 1,508,701 (158,281)
Contracted Security 228,000 248,589 20,589
Meetings 32,000 24,120 (7,880)
Meals & Entertainment 14,500 11,918 (2,582)
Dues & Subscriptions 3,600 2,008 (1,592)
Professional Fees 36,000 37,309 1,309
Employee Training 10,000 11,873 1,873
Printing 15,600 1,484 (14,116)
Adbvertising 25,000 16,231 (8,769)
Trash Removal 30,000 28,954 (1,046)
Landscaping 0 - -
Armored Services 2,400 2,371 (29)
Exterminating 75,600 13,300 (62,300)
Cleaning 9,000 9,600 600
Construction Costs 0 - -
Repairs & Maintenance 270,000 212,485 (57,515)
Snow Removal 0 - -
Supplies 179,000 208,008 29,008
Corporate Travel 5,000 4,895 (105)
Computer Expenses 75,000 82,764 7,764
Equipment Rental 12,000 9,847 (2,153)
Bank Service Charges 12,000 14,476 2,476
General Liability Insurance 81,987 84,104 2,117
Property Insurance 115,000 116,406 1,406
Insurance Expense 42,000 40,120 (1,880)
Local Taxes 0 - -
Printing & Stationary 11,000 5,893 (5,107)
Office Supplies 9,000 11,532 2,532
Postage 5,000 2,054 (2,946)
Parking Expense 18,000 17,541 (459)
Telephone 72,000 73,919 1,919
Utilities 1,533,450 1,426,568 (106,882)
Management Fee 246,397 271,368 24971
Incentive Fee 0 32,149 32,149
Allocated Expenses 0 - -
Total Materials & Service 3,168,534 3,021,886 (146,648)
Total Indirect Expenses 4,835,516 4,530,587 (304,929)




SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Full Time Employee Summary

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2006

Position VAA DVP F/Y 2005 VAA DVP F/Y 2006 Change
General Manager 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Administrative Assistant 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Director of Finance 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Accounting Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Accounting Support 1.50 1.50 3.00 1.50 1.50 3.00 -
Box Office Manager 0.80 0.20 1.00 0.80 0.20 1.00 -
Assistant Box Office Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Premium Seat/Suite 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Box Office Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Director of Marketing 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.50 0.50 1.00 -
Marketing Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Marketing Support 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Group Sales Manager 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 -
Assistant General Manager 0.33 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Director of Facilities 033 0.67 1.00 0.33 0.67 1.00 -
Maintenance Support 4.00 6.00 10.00 4.00 7.00 11.00 1.00
Operations Manager 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 -
Operations Support 9.00 8.00 17.00 9.00 8.00 17.00 -
Director of Sales - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Sales Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00
Sales Support - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Director of Event Services - 1.00 1.00 - 1.00 1.00 -
Event Coordinators 2.00 4.00 6.00 2.00 4.00 6.00 -
Receiptionist/Admin Support 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00
Total 2896  29.04 58.00 2896  32.04 61.00 3.00



SMG - Van Andel Arena / DeVos Place(Grand Center)
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Calculation

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2006

The management fee is broken up into two categories. The base fee and incentive fee.

The base fee started with the new contract in F/Y 2002 as $450,000 split evenly between
DeVos Place and Van Andel Arena. This fee is subject to an annual increase based
on the change in the CPI-U. This budget assumes that the increase will be 3.0% for fiscal

year 2006.

The incentive fee is based on benchmark revenues for each of the two facilities. The Van
Andel Arena benchmark is based on the number set in the SMG Managerial Contract
which is subject to the same annual increase as stated above for the base fee. The DeVos
Place benchmark is equal to the budgeted total gross revenue for each fiscal year. The
incentive fee based on a percentage of the combined revenues in excess of the combined
benchmark. SMG receives 20% of the first $1 million and 25% above that. In no fiscal
year can the incentive fee exceed that of the base fee.

SMG is entitled to the incentive fee as calculated above only if the combined Net Revenue
above Expenses for the facilities exceeds the total of $1,648,212 (Van Andel) and the

budgeted figure for DeVos Place.

Below is the calculation for the Base and Incentive Fee's for F/Y 2006 compared to the

expected fee for F/Y 2005.

Net Revenue above Expenses
Benchmark
Excess

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Base Fee
Incentive Fee
Revenue

Benchmark Revenue

Projected Revenue Increase
Incentive Percentage

Total Incentive Fee

Total SMG Management Fee

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2005
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
1,434,572  (1,388,942) 45,630 313,477
1,648,212  (1,248,902) 399,310 259,015
(213,640) (140,040) (353,680) 54,462
Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2005
Budget Budget Budget Act/Est
244,482 244,482 488,964 478,439
4,671,112 3,246,912 7,918,024 8,203,560
4,563,576 3,246,912 7,810,488 7,712,250
- - - 491,310
20% 20% 20% 20%
- - - 98,262
244,482 244,482 488,964 576,701




Item IV. b. iv.

FISCAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
MEMORANDUM

TO: Convention/Arena Authority Finance Committee

FROM: Robert White QW

Fiscal Services{Director

SUBJECT: Convention/Arena Authority (CAA)
FY2006 Budget Request

DATE: May 18, 2005

The attached material summarizes the Facility Manager Budget, CAA Operating Budget and a
Consolidated Income Statement for Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2004 and 2005. This material
does not include staff recommendations concerning Capital Repair/Improvement/Replacement
items for Fiscal Year 2006. This material will be submitted under separate cover at the July 21,
2005 Finance Committee meeting.

The Table A, attached hereto, summarizes the SMG Facilities Budget for Fiscal Years 2004 &
2005. The most recently updated estimate for the current fiscal year (FY2005) discloses a
combined facility net operating income projection that has improved from the original budgetary
allowances. The Fiscal Year 2005 combined Facilities Budget projected a “Net Available to
CAA” of $126,232. The third fiscal quarter updated estimates raise this net available balance to
$338,477 for the current fiscal year. The improved financial results are driven by higher
operating revenues and lower operating expenses to be incurred at DeVos Place. The “Net
Available to CAA” for Fiscal Year 2006 remains essentially unchanged from current year
estimates.

Table B following this correspondence summarizes the anticipated revenues, expenditures and
change in net assets of the CAA for the current and upcoming (FY2006) fiscal years. Based on
the most recent data available for the administrative portion of the budget, it is projected that the
CAA will add approximately $267,621 to its “Net Assets” fund balance position at fiscal year
end. Excluding funding for capital items in the Fiscal Year 2006 budget, it is anticipated that
$432,049 will be added to “Net Assets” (Fund Balance) during Fiscal Year 2006.

Table C attached hereto provides a “Consolidated Income Statement” for the Convention/Arena
Authority covering fiscal years ending June 30, 2005 and 2006. The Fiscal Year 2005 Budget, as
originally adopted, forecasted a net income of $162,463. This forecast has been revised upward
to a total as adjusted balance of $3,267,621. Net income was substantially increased by
recognition of a $3,000,000 transfer from the Capital Account to the Operating Account. This
transfer was authorized by the Convention/Arena Authority Board at its January, 2005 meeting.



CAA Budget Request
Page 2

At that time, the Board amended the Sources and Uses of Funds Statement related to its Capital
Construction Budget. As a part of that amendment, it was determined that, the original
contribution from the operating reserve was no longer deemed necessary.

On the basis of these budgetary estimates, it is expected that the Authority will close its Fiscal
Year 2006 activities with a “Net Assets — Unrestricted Balance” approximating $8.9 million.
This would include a recommended minimum operating reserve balance of $6 million and a
Capital/Repair/Replacement/Improvement Reserve of $2.9 million. It is anticipated that
additional balances will become available, to supplement the capital replacement reserve, upon
final project closeout of the DeVos Place construction budget. Recommendations concerning
closeout balances will be made at the Convention/Arena Authority — Finance Committee meeting
scheduled for July 21, 2005.

Sue Waddell, Jan Wallace and I participated in preparation of the attached recommendations. We
are available to answer any questions that may arise pertaining to this material



Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority

FY2006 Preliminary Budget
May 17, 2005

Table A

Summary of SMG Facilities Budget

Table B Summary of CAA Administrative Budget

- Detail of CAA Line - Items

- Notes to Administrative Budget

- City - APS Parking Facilities Budget Detail

Table C Consolidated Income Statement

Page
1

4-5
6-10

11



Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
SMG Facilities Budget
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2005 & 2006

VanAndel Arena
Operating ¢ Revenues
* Expenses - Facilities
- Management Fees

Net Operating Income

DeVos Place
Operating * Revenues
* Expenses - Facilities
- Management Fees

Net Operating Income

Net Available to CAA:
VanAndel Arena
DeVos Place

FY2005

Budget

$ 4,798,695
(3,046,160)
(237,361)

Estimate

$ 4,820,908
(3,072,803)
(286,693)

FY2006
Requested

$ 4,840,887
(3,125,438)
(244,482)

8 1515174

$ 3,246,912
(4,398,493)
(237,361

$ 1,461,412

$ 3,407,652
(4,261,083)
(269,504)

8 1,470,067

$ 3,680,413
(4,591,034)
(244,482)

$ (1,388,942)

$ (1,122,935)

$ 1,515,174
(1,388,942)

$ 1,461,412
(1,122,935)

$ (1,155,103)

$ 1,470,967
(1,155,103)

$ 126,232

$ 338,477

$ 315,864




Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
Operating/Capital Replacement Budget
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2004 & 2005

FY2005 FY2006
Budget Estimate Requested
Revenues:
SMG Transfers
Facility Operation (Net) $ 126,232 $ 338,477 $ 315,864
Utility Reimbursement 2,283,450 2,186,415 2,210,750
2,409,682 2,524,892 2,526,614
DeVos Place Parking 646,500 445,869 513,500 ®
Land Lease 123,000 137,406 138,196 @
Interest on Investments 22,000 40,000 135,000
Miscellaneous | 15,000 15,000 15,000
3,216,182 3,163,167 3,328,310
Expenditures:
Utilities 2,283,450 2,186,415 2,210,750 ©
Parking Management 257,011 240,465 341,900
Pedestrian Safety 86,000 74,371 76,602 @
Administration 233,769 206,400 212,009 @
Capital Repair 193,489 187,895 - ©
3,053,719 2,895,546 2,841,261
Net Excess (Deficit) 162,463 $ 267,621 $ 487,049



Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
Detail of Expenditure Estimates
Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2005 & 2006

5/18/2005

FY2005 FY2006
Budget Estimate Request
Utilities
Electricity $1,078,000 $1,104,558 $1,093,500
Steam 997,050 957,103 941,850
Water/Sewer 133,400 97,854 143,400
Gas 75,000 26,900 32,000
$2,283,450 $2,186,415 $2,210,750
Wages 54,336 54,336 56,509
Benefits 18,933 17,296 17,566
Accounting/Audit Services 62,000 46,884 38,200
Legal Services 40,000 20,000 30,000
DID Assessment 38,100 46,154 47,034
Insurance Premiums 18,500 19,830 20,800
Meetings/Supplies 1,900 1,900 1,900
$233,769 $206,400 $212,009
R.J. White



m

@

&)

0

Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
Operating/Capital Replacement Budget
Notes to Financial Statement for Fiscal Year 2006

The Authority presently has a "Parking Operation and Maintenance Agreement" with the City of Grand
Rapids which expires on June 30, 2005. The "Operating Agreement" entered into between the CAA and
the City of Grand Rapids, on March 29, 2000, provides under Article VI that, "It is agreed that all
parking facilities constituting a portion of the Convention Center shall be operated by the City's parking
system...". Staff will be bring forth, under a separate Board agenda item, a proposed new contract with
the City of Grand Rapids which would provide for operation of the parking facility through June 30,
2008.

The Facility first became available for use on January 23, 2004 with 330 spaces. The entire facility,
totaling 690 spaces, became available for use on January 31, 2005. The estimated Fiscal Year 2006 user
rates are noted as follows:

Fiscal Year 2005 Fiscal Year 2006 (est.)
Monthly $128.00 $132.00
Monthly/Gov't/SMG 40.00 40.00
Half Hour 0.95 . 1.00
Daily 8.75 9.00
Event 6.25 6.50

In November 2002, the Authority entered into a "Parking Operation and Maintenance Agreement" with
the City of Grand Rapids for a 149 space surface parking lot located immediately south of the
VanAndel Arena. The term of this contract runs through June 30, 2010. The City-Auto Parking System
pays the Convention Arena Authority a "Usage Fee" which is adjusted each year, at Fiscal Year end,
based on actual revenues and expenses generated by the facility.

The Authority pays all the steam, electricity, natural gas and water/sewer bills for the VanAndel Arena
and DeVos Place.

The Arena Authority participates with the City-Auto Parking System and City-Downtown Development
Authority in funding of "Pedestrian Safety" during events at the VanAndel Arena and DeVos Place. The
total proposed budget for this activity during Fiscal Year 2006 approximates $211,000. Based on a
formula previously approved by the parties, the Convention/Arena Authority assumes a liability for
36.28% of the cost. The budget allowance proposed for Fiscal Year 2006 constitutes a not to exceed
balance.

R.J. White
5/18/2005 4



Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
Operating/Capital Replacement Budget
Notes to Financial Statement for Fiscal Year 2006

( The administrative portion of the budget provides for staff wages/benefits, accounting/auditing services,
liability insurance premiums, legal services, downtown improvement district-special assessments and
other miscellaneous. Additional line item detail is provided on a separate schedule.

(©) The Convention/Arena Authority provides an allowance for Capital Repairs/Improvements/
Replacement projects which are not otherwise provided for under the SMG Management Services
agreement. The allowance is not included in the Fiscal Year 2006 Budget presently being considered for
adoption. A separate subcommittee of the Finance Committee is currently reviewing the long term
capital needs of both the VanAndel Arena and DeVos Place Convention Center. A separate report is
expected to be delivered to the CAA Finance Committee at its July 2005 meeting.

R.J. White
5/18/2005 5



8082 $
658'L¥ES
000'sz $
659'91ES
00S $
0002t $
9856 $
000'9L $

(Y ¥r4]
oor's $

2199619

- $
205'951$
05528 §
Sk9'SLLS

90Ad

183

Tisv've) § Iusuiked (1eaQ) Jopun

‘18A papucoas

oq (|e Jou Aew sesuedxe
- 9iqEJs utewas pinoys
SISQUINU SNUBASS judy
esjewqs3y,

$88'6¢Z $
ged  09ZSS000S0%08YD 00v'2€ ¢
uer 9150500050 %08y 00Y'LE $
200  09YEY000S0dO0YD 00V'LE $
AONAOOAdeS  0ZSBE000S0 X004D 00Z'ZL4S
snBnw/AIngG LGEE200050 %00UD SBY'SL $ swewded
yop'soz $ seysues) [€10)
TI0ZS2 §  sesuedxa [enuuy pejeusa
TYOr'S02S (€201) © 29t 6 66e6 S bv618 § JB9ZES OLZCcS OLOGLS 192Z § 0000L § ©i61 § Gt § O6L ¢ (s507) suwoou] Aguon
SOV'OPZS 0SE'0Z $ 0SE'ST $ LIz ¢ 16812 § £66'Z$ 650'L2$ 208'9L S €181 8 €09ZL $ 9821 $ vHS'8LS LTEL $ sesuedx3 fej0)
000'8L ¢ 00S'L $ 00S't ¢ 005 $ 005 $ 005'L $ 00S'L $ 00S'L ¢ 00S't $ 005 $ 00S' $ O0OS'L $ 00S't $ 0008l § 004 juewebeueyy
Gob'zees 00881 § 000ce S Zp66L S IGC0C_$ E6vicS 655628 20EGLS CLEOLS E£O0LOL § 978G § vh0ZL S Z/J5L § LI0e6EZ S sasuedx3 |gjoL
- 8 ewdinb3 jewsg
- 8 jempequod
208 $ 008 $ 008 $ 4 $ e ¢ 088 $ 668 $ bz S 1291 ¢ eseoY/SIRUOY Juswdinby
€11'2 $ ose ose $ o9 $ 66 $ ¢ ¢ 06€'L $ e 8 o8 ¢ eousuaIen
L6Y'E0ZS 00S'2L $ 00S2Z § €2i'Zl $ L686L $ 98€'LL$ 682'€ZS TOCSLS 29L'GLS 68E'SL $ SSZTPL $ LvMLS LML $ siso)) esfoidwz
pes'e ¢ 002 ¢ 002 $ v81 $ v’ ¢ 06§ €6l ¢ sayddng
sesuedxg peug
698'SvbS Jlz6l § ZiZSc © O8Ot © G6LEO0L © 089098 GEE6G% BIYeES 7I0GCS COUCE § 6Pe6L § ZIZ12S CLOTE & 00S9F0 § enuoney (€0l
) ¢ - s - $ - $ (6) $ g ¢ - 8 - $(9 $ (s) $ - $ - s - $ HOYSUBAQ ysed
8L0'96L$ 66L'C $ €O'L $ S8E'9 S OLI'PF $ 09V'0ES 99L'BZS 9506 $ SPOZLS S6SL $ L6LS $ C20T $ 6L 0§ €950 S WeAZ - sidieoay Supped
SYZI8$ 9SL'L $ 9GL'L S MLV $ L96'L 0§ [29G $ VLI'L S LIYOLS O¥S'L $ £20'0L $ 262'9 $ SOL'S § €L § SYOVE ¢ Auuop - sidisoay bupyed
919'80Z$ 226'8 $ EIS'LL $ OSL'TC 0§ LZLIS 0§ €6S'HTS SOL'YZS 15621 S €8p'LL S €50'9L $ SOEL ¢ 06S5'vLS 9¥9'T ¢ 269'90p $ Aieq - sidiaoay Bupped
is3
104 ~sunf e (wdy ] qeg uer %8Q AON RO deg isnbny Anp 1ebpng



DeVos Place
FY06 Estimate

Revenue
Daily Revenue $ 233,300
Price increase from .95 to $1.00 per half hour and from $8.75 to $9.00 all day
Actual revenue from July 04 through January 05 increasing volume by 20% plus price
increase. All parking spaces were opened in February 2005.
February 05 to Estimated June 05 increasing volume by 5% plus price increase

Analysis of time tickets indicate that 45% of daily customers pay the daily maximum rate.
Event Revenue $ 178,400
Prince increase from $6.25 per vehicle to $6.50 per vehicle
Actual revenue from July 04 through January 05 increasing volume by 40% plus price
increase. All parking spaces were opened in February 2005.
February 05 to Estimated June 05 increasing volume by 10% plus price increase
This revenue estimate equates to 27,446 vehicles
Monthly Revenue
Price increase from $128.00 per month to $132.00 $ 101,800
Kent County holds 100 parking cards - these cards are at Operations and Maintenance
charge $40.00 per month for FY05.
Upcoming construction may increase demand for monthly parking. This increase is
included in the projection
Currently there are 122 monthly customers, including Kent County

Total Revenue $ 513,500
Expenses
Employee Costs $ 271,400

Regular staff 8 hours per day 5 days per week 52 weeks per year - hourly rate $9.94
Evening staff 8 hours per day 5 days per week 52 weeks per year - hourly rate $9.94
Additional staffing for events during day, evening, and weekends for 125 events. Includes
booth attendants and traffic personnel - hourly rate $9.94
Portion of evening and weekend break person, portion of special event team leader, and
training for new employees. Weekend team leader $12.10 per hour - personnel rate $9.94
per hour.
Ten percent of seasonal security staff.
Portion of full time GREIU employee responsible for booth set up and close down at the
end of the day.
Portion of GREIU employee responsible for day breaks Monday through Friday
Portion of GREIU maintenance employees for ramp maintenance
Costs include: Wages, social security taxes, and benefits.
Maintenance $ 18,000
Card Access preventative maintenance (includes card readers, fee computers, gate arms,
ticket spitters, and loops cut into the pavement) $10,000.
Consultant recommended ramp repairs and additional repairs as required.
Contractual $ 12,000
FY06 is a ramp inspection year. All components of the ramp will be inspected for safety
and structural integrity.
Equipment Rentals and Lease $ 9,600
Portion of maintenance vehicles and security vehicles allocated to DeVos Place



DeVos Place
— FY06 Estimate

Tickets from the ticket spitter, hang tags (for events), and supplies purchased for use
directly at DeVos Place.

Small Equipment

Small equipment purchased for use at DeVos place. For example chairs for parking
booths

Total Direct Expenses

Management Fee - Overhead Allocation

Current contract provides for a management fee. This pays a portion of the administrative
costs associated with DeVos Place.

Included in these costs is: parking card billing, collecting funds, posting to the proper
accounts, evening audits of occupancy and revenue, card access and revenue equipment
programming, telephone calls from current or potential customers, all aspects of
purchasing supplies, and employee supervision.

Total Expenses plus Management Fee
Expected Revenue Transfer

Anticipated Monthly payments beginning July 2005

$ 5,400
$ 500
S 316900
$ 25000
$ 341,900

171600

$ 14,300



Isnbny 00'9/8'6 $ 28968
Anr 00'9/8'6  $ S.9258

9616 $ 8268 $ €126 $ S92'8 $ €OL'8 $ 0£0'8 $ v06'L $
€21°22L$ S19'8LLS SOV'ZZLS 608'60LS 9G9°20L$ 689'00L $ 600'SOL$
69€°LELS €VS'2ZLS 8LOLELS ¥L0'8LLS 6S.CLLS 6LLPLE $ €L6ChLS
961L'8€L$ 90V'/ELS 81L2'80LS 908'80L$ 9/6'6LL$ OLL'GOL ¢ <€vSeel$
YSG'6S § 68226 $ €9/'29 $ GL1'6S $ 6S8'YS $ 822G $ ve60S $
voe'vL $ Z88'tl $ Lipb'GL $ Obl'vL $ L6V'€EL § 9¥09L ¢ 6279l $
GvS'ZL $ 6L'2L $ €008l $ 9vL'LL $ 1126 $ SbL'S $ /809 ¢
G0E9 $ 22IL'9 $ 62v'9 $ €2L'9 $ 0299 $ IELL $ ozL'L ¢
99L't $ 969't $ o0ze'e $ 29L'C $ 6919 ¢ €00k ¢ 626 $
veo'sl $ Ov6'9l $ +ES'6L $ ¥09'SL $ 208'8L $ €08VL $ €L0'OL $
0s2'e61L$ 161°06L$ 186'0LL$ 18G'89LS Se€8'piL $ v¥B'EOL S Z/p98L$
2lS8'V. $ L6V $ LlS'8h $ L.G'8Y $ 61129 $ GGL'JS ¢ 89¥'l8
€.1'221$ S19'8LLS YOP'ZZLS +00°0ZLS 9S9°20L $ 689'90L ¢ 600°COLS
90Ad GOAd GOAd YOA £0Ad 20Ad LOAd

sjewysy 9ewns3y  pajewns3y [enjoy

[euly feulbuo
S002 ‘02 1udy

9002 - S00T 429 A |eds]4 ejewnsy
Y002 - 1L00T Sieo, [edsid - jenjoy
awoou| Bunesedo
se)eQ/eualsy - Z “ON eary
pung wejsAg bupjsed oyny

uebjyoil ‘spidey pueig jo 319

¥002/62/L

¥00¢/1c/iL
sjuswAed

salljioeq SV 48410 01 %/
C 'ON Baly 0] %£6

UONEOfY SNUBASY SSed AJUOW,

swosu| Bugesado

uolesjsiuiwpy/uoisiiadng
soueusjuiey pue seday
Aunoag
adeoaspuejmojdmoug
Buyjers jueng

:sesuedx3y Hugnesedp

JuaAg
~Alyuop
isanueasy Bunesedp



Area 2
FYO06 Estimate

Revenue

Event Revenue $ 71600
Price to remain at $7.00 per vehicle. This price was increased from $6.25 to $7.00 per
vehicle for FY05. This equates to 10,229 event vehicles.

Monthly Revenue
Price increase from $58.75 per month to $60.50. This is in line with CPI. $ 122,200
Currently the lot is full of monthly parking customers.
The contract for Area 2 utilizes a 93% revenue calculation for transfer purposes. Total
revenue will be $131,400.
The lot has 181 parking cards generating revenue for 149 spaces.

Total Revenue $ 193,800
Expenses .
Employee Costs $ 18634

Estimated staffing for an increase of 11 - of 10% events over prior year to 121 events.

Staff rate is estimated at 11 hours per event at $14 per hour. This time includes the facility
staff plus a portion of the team leader. The rate includes employer social security.
Maintenance | $ 16,300

Card Access preventative maintenance (includes card readers, fee computers, gate arms,
ticket spitters, and loops cut into the pavement) $10,000. Additional repairs as required
Total GRPS snow removal bill x 4.9% for the estimated number of plowed spaces located
in Area 2

GRPS landscape charges for DASH South x percent of parking spaces in Area 2 as a
portion of DASH South
Security $ 6,300

Total security for GRPS system x percent of parking spaces in Area 2 as a portion of entire
GRPS supply

Administration $ 14,300

Adminstrative costs for GRPS less depreciation x percent of parking spaces in Area 2 as a
portion of entire GRPS supply

Total Expenses $ 55534
Expected Revenue Transfer $ 138,266
Anticipated Monthly payments beginning July 2005 $ 11,522

10



Grand Rapids/Kent County Convention Arena Authority
Consolidated Income Statement

Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2005 & 2006

Operating Revenues:
Event, Direct - VanAndel Arena
- DeVos Place
Ancillary Income - VanAndel Arena
- DeVos Place
Other - VanAndel Arena
- DeVos Place M
- Parking

Operating Expenses/Appropriations:
Facility Management - VanAndel Arena
- DeVos Place
Parking
Pedestrian Safety
Capital Repair
Administrative

Operating Income (Loss) Before Depreciation

Non-Operating Revenue - Interest & Misc.

- Transferred From Capital Acct.

Net Income
Net Assets, Unrestricted, Beginning of Year

Net Assets, Unrestricted, End of Year

Notes:
) premium seating, advertising, other.

FY2005 FY2006

Budget Estimate Request
$1,278,171 $ 1,243,640 $1,187,222
1,987,844 1,950,095 2,052,492
1,535,524 1,401,269 1,487,665
1,092,068 1,349,955 1,469,921
1,985,000 2,175,999 2,166,000
167,000 107,602 158,000
769,500 583,275 651,696
8,815,107 8,811,835 9,172,996
3,283,521 3,359,496 3,369,920
4,635,854 4,530,587 4,835,516
257,011 240,465 341,900
86,000 74,371 76,602
193,489 187,895 -
233,769 206,400 212,009
8,689,644 8,599,214 8,835,947
125,463 212,621 337,049
37,000 55,000 150,000
; 3,000,000 -
162,463 3,267,621 487,049
5,156,417 5,156,417 8,424,038

$ 5,318,880 $ 8,424,038 $8,911,087 @

@ Including a minimum Operating Reserve of $6M and an estimated June 30, 2006 Capital

Replacement/Improvement Reserve of $2,911,087.

R.J.White
120N

"



PRESENTED AS INFORMATION ONLY JtemIV.b.v.

PARKING OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

THIS PARKING OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (the
"Agreement") is made this __ day of , 2005, by and between the
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY, a Michigan
statutory authority (the "CAA" or "Authority"), and the CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS, a
Michigan municipal corporation (the "City").

PREMISES

A. The CAA controls the operation of DeVos Place, a performing
arts/convention/entertainment facility located at 303 Monroe Avenue, N.-W., in the City (the
"Convention Center"), including 690 parking spaces located in the lower level of the Convention
Center identified on Exhibit A attached hereto (the "Parking Spaces").

B. The Operating Agreement dated as of March 29, 2000 (the "Operating
Agreement"), between the County of Kent (the "County") and the City related to the Convention
Center provides that (a) "all parking facilities constituting a portion of the Convention Center
shall be operated by the City's Parking System under the direction of the Authority with any net
income in a fiscal year of the Authority, after deduction of operating expenses, belong to the
Authority" and (b) "the Authority shall make available to the County and the City, for employees
and other users the parking spaces in the Convention Center parking facilities at a cost equal to a
pro rata share of operating expenses."

C. The CAA and the City previously entered into a Parking Operation and
Maintenance Agreement dated January 2004, related to the Parking Spaces during the phase-in
period of such Parking Spaces which expires June 30, 2005.

D. The CAA and the City desire to enter into this Agreement setting forth (a) the
terms and conditions for the continued operation and maintenance of the Parking Spaces and (b)
the basis for providing, including the determination of cost, the Parking Spaces to the County
and the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, the
parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Operation and Maintenance of Parking Spaces. Subject to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, the City, through its Parking Services Department (the
"Department"), shall be responsible for the operation and maintenance of the Parking Spaces.

Section 2. Parking Control Equipment. The CAA shall at its cost be responsible
for providing, replacing and upgrading at each entry/exit to the Parking Spaces parking control
equipment compatible with the City's Automobile Parking System (the "System") and, where
required, attendant booths of the same or similar quality as booths located in City-owned parking
ramps within the System. The City shall be responsible for the maintenance of such parking
control equipment and attendant booths. In this regard, the City currently maintains its parking
control equipment throughout the System pursuant to a maintenance agreement with an outside
vendor. The City will include the Convention Center Parking Spaces parking control equipment

GRAPIDS 61448-72 160678



in such maintenance agreement and any future maintenance agreements and pass such additional
costs on to the CAA as an operational cost which the CAA agrees to pay.

Section3.  Conditions of Operation and Maintenance. The operation and

maintenance of the Parking Spaces by the Department shall be subject to the following
conditions:

(a) Unless otherwise agreed by the CAA and the City, the Department shall be
responsible for providing:

1. Attendant staffing as and to the level mutually determined necessary by
the CAA's Owner's Representative and the Department.

2. Security/customer service "red car" patrol at the same level provided to
parking lots and ramps in the System during those times that the Parking
Spaces are available for public monthly pass, daily in/out or special event
use. It is understood that the CAA has installed and will maintain and
monitor security cameras throughout the area of the Parking Spaces as a
part of the Convention Center's overall security system.

3. Supervision of Department personnel performing services related to the

Parking Spaces and administrative services including management and
accounting services.

4, Routine maintenance, including striping as required, semi-annual wash
down, cleaning and sweeping as needed on a regular basis, but excludes
the changing of light bulbs, resurfacing, structural repairs, repair of
damage caused by users, replacement of parking control equipment and
repair and replacement of attendant booths.

(b)  The level of operation and maintenance provided shall, except as otherwise
provided in this Agreement, be equal to that provided by the Department to City-
owned ramps operated and maintained by the Department.

Section4.  Utilities. The CAA shall be responsible for furnishing and paying for
utilities related to the space occupied by the Parking Spaces, including electricity for lighting and
parking control equipment and electric and telephone lines for attendant booths.

Section 5.  Hours of Operation. The CAA's Owner's Representative shall determine
the hours of operation of the Parking Spaces for both event and non-event days.

Section 6. City and County Use of Parking Spaces. Pursuant to the terms of the
Operating Agreement, the CAA is required to make the Parking Spaces available to the County
and the City for employees and other users on a prepaid monthly pass basis. When such spaces
are requested by the County or the City, the Department shall work with the CAA to facilitate
making the requested spaces available. Unless otherwise mutually agreed by the City and CAA,
the City agrees that it will maintain from time to time at the Government Center Parking Ramp

2-

GRAPIDS 61448-72 160678



located across Monroe Avenue from the Convention Center (the "Government Center Ramp") as
daily/special event spaces (without in and out privileges) parking spaces of an equal number to

the number of spaces that have moved from the Government Center Ramp to the Parking Spaces
at the request of the City.

Section 7.  Monthly Parking Passes. Except for the monthly parking passes
required to be made available to the City and County pursuant to Section 6 hereof, the total

number of monthly parking passes issued at any one time for the Parking Spaces shall be
approved by the CAA's Owner's Representative.

Section 8.  Establishment of Parking Rates. Rates charged for use of the Parking
Spaces, except those made available to the County and City pursuant to Section 6 hereof, shall be
(a) as determined from time to time by the City Parking Commission and the City Commission
in conjunction with the Department's annual facilities study update after receiving input from the
CAA's Owners' Representative, and (b) as finally approved by the CAA's Owner's
Representative provided, however, such (i) prepaid daily maximum rate shall not be less than
80% of the similar rate charged at the Government Center Ramp and (ii) the prepaid monthly
pass rate and special event rates shall not be less than those similar rates charged at the
Government Center Ramp unless the CAA and the City otherwise mutually agree.

Section 9. Establishment of Parking Rates for County and City Use. In
accordance with the provisions of the Operating Agreement, parking spaces made available to
the County and City pursuant to Section 6 hereof are to be provided at a cost equal to the pro rata
share of the operating expenses of the Parking Spaces used by the County and City. The
Department shall determine such cost annually in conjunction with its annual facilities update.
Costs to be incorporated in the rate established for the County and the City shall include the
Department's operating costs, including a reasonable management fee related to the Parking
Spaces (the "Department Operating Costs") and a pro rata share of operation and maintenance
incurred by the CAA in connection with the Parking Spaces such as a pro rata share of utility
costs, elevator maintenance, insurance premiums and building security and those maintenance
costs related to the Parking Spaces separately billed by the Department to the CAA. (collectively,
with the Department Operating Costs, the "Parking Spaces Operating Costs"). For each fiscal
year during the term of this Agreement beginning with the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2005,
the rate established for the City and the County (the "CC Rate") shall be determined based on
estimated costs for such fiscal year plus an upward or downward adjustment to reflect the
recovery of actual costs versus estimated costs for the prior fiscal year (the "Adjustment"). The
CC Rate for the County and City shall be determined by dividing the total number of monthly
passes for the Parking Spaces issued by the Department at the time of such determination (but
such number shall never be less than the number of Parking Spaces) into the Parking Spaces
Operating Costs plus or minus the Adjustment for such fiscal year. The Department shall make
available to the CAA's Owner's Representative the calculation of such Rate for review and
approval prior to the implementation of such CC Rate. It is understood that for the purpose of

determining the CC Rate, Parking Spaces Operating Costs will not be allocated to daily in/out
parkers and event parkers.

Section 10.  Preparation and Approval of Annual Budget. The Department shall
prepare and submit to the CAA's Owner's Representative for approval an operating cost budget
-3-

GRAPIDS 61448-72 160678



for the Parking Spaces for the ensuing fiscal year. Except for the fiscal year beginning July 1,
2005 (which budget shall be submitted at least 30 days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year),
budgets shall be submitted at least 60 days prior to a fiscal year.

Section 11. Review of Procedures for Establishing Parking Rates and Other
Matters. The CAA through it's Owner's Representative and the City through the Department
agree to meet to review the procedures used to establish rates pursuant to Sections 8 and 9 hereof
and, if based on such review, it is mutually agreed to revise such procedures, to amend this
Agreement to reflect such revisions. In addition, the CAA through it's Owner's Representative
and the Department agree to communicate regularly as necessary concerning the levels of

operation and maintenance service provided for the Parking Spaces and to meet and review such
levels of service on an annual basis.

Section 12.  Collection and Deposit of Receipts and Payment of Department
Operating Costs. The Department shall bill and collect all revenues for the Parking Spaces
based on rates established pursuant to Sections 8 and 9 hereof and cause any such receipts
generated from hourly, daily or event collections to be deposited daily in a CAA bank account
pursuant to written instructions from the CAA's Owner's Representative. Bill receipts generated
from credit card, validation accounts and monthly card holder fees will be accounted for on a
monthly basis and subtracted from the monthly operating costs billing invoices. The Department
shall bill the CAA for Department Operating Costs on a calendar month basis. The billing
invoice shall contain "line item" detail and documentation verifying such Department Operating
Costs shall be promptly made available by the Department to the CAA's Owner's Representative
upon request. The CAA shall pay such invoices within 30 days of their receipt. If the CAA has
any questions regarding an invoice, it shall promptly notify the Department and the CAA's
Owner's Representative and the Department shall promptly meet to resolve such questions and
make any required adjustments in the invoice.

Section 13. Term. The Agreement shall be for a term commencing on July 1, 2005,
and ending June 30, 2008, subject to the right of either party to terminate the Agreement early on

July 1 of any year by giving written notice to the other party at least one year prior to the
termination date.

Section 14.  Indemnification. The City shall indemnify the CAA and its officers,
boardmembers, employees and agents (the "CAA Indemnified Parties” or "CAA Indemnified
Party") against, and save the CAA Indemnified Parties harmless from, any and all liabilities,
obligations, damages, penalties, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys fees, paid or
incurred by the CAA Indemnified Parties and arising from the City's or the City's invitees use of
the Parking Spaces except such as arise from the willful acts or negligence of the CAA
Indemnified Parties. If any action or proceeding is brought against a CAA Indemnified Party, by
reason of any such claim, the City will, upon written notice from the CAA Indemnified Party, at
the City's expense, resist or defend such action or proceeding by counsel approved by the CAA
Indemnified Party in writing. In providing the indemnification set forth above, the City is not
waiving any defenses otherwise available to it by law; provided such defenses are also available
to, and asserted by, the City for the CAA Indemnified Parties. The City shall not be responsible
for the indemnification obligations set forth above with respect to any CAA Indemnified Party to

-4-

GRAPIDS 61448-72 160678



the extent that a CAA Indemnified Party has waived a defense which was otherwise available to
it by law.

The CAA shall indemnify the City and its officers, commissioners, employees and agents
(the "City Indemnified Parties" or "City Indemnified Party") against and save the City
Indemnified Parties harmless from any and all liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, costs
and expenses, including reasonable attorneys fees, paid or incurred by the City Indemnified
Parties and arising from the CAA's and the CAA's invitees use and occupancy of the Parking
Spaces except such as arise from the willful acts or negligence of the City Indemnified Parties.
If any action or proceeding is brought against a City Indemnified Party by reason of any such
claim, the CAA will upon written notice from the City Indemnified Party, at the CAA's expense,
resist or defend such action or proceeding by counsel approved by the City Indemnified Party in
writing. In providing the indemnification set forth above, the CAA is not waiving any defenses
otherwise available to it by law; provided such defenses are also available to, and asserted by, the
CAA for the City Indemnified Parties. The CAA shall not be responsible for the indemnification
obligations set forth above with respect to any City Indemnified Party to the extent that a City
Indemnified Party has waived a defense which was otherwise available to it by law.

Section 15.  Notices. All notices and other communications to be given pursuant to
this Agreement shall be given in writing and delivered personally, by certified or registered mail

(return receipt requested, postage prepaid) or by facsimile to the appropriate party at its address
or facsimile set forth below:

If to the CAA: Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena
Authority
303 Monroe Avenue, N.W.
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503
Attention: Administrative Manager
Facsimile Number: (616) 742-6197

If to the City: City of Grand Rapids
6th Floor, City Hall
300 Monroe Avenue, N.W.
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503
Attention: City Manager
Facsimile Number: (616) 456-3166

With a copy to: City of Grand Rapids
Parking Services Department
50 Ottawa Avenue, N.W.
P.O. Box 1968
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49501-1968
Attention: Parking Services Director
Facsimile Number: (616) 456-4322

Either party may change its designated address/facsimile number by delivery of written
notice of the change to the other party. Notices shall be deemed effective upon actual receipt.
-5-

GRAPIDS 61448-72 160678



Actual receipt of facsimile transmissions shall be presumed based upon the transmitting party's
receipt of a confirmation of transmission.

Section 16. General Provisions.

(@)  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the CAA and the City
related to the subject matter hereof, i.e., the operation and maintenance of the Parking Spaces,

and may be modified or amended in whole or in part from time to time only by mutual written
agreement of the CAA and the City.

(b)  As used in this Agreement the term "Owner's Representative” shall mean the

general manager of the Convention Center or such other person as shall be designated to the
Department by the CAA in writing,

(c)  This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of
Michigan.

(d  Nothing in this Agreement is intended by the parties hereto to create, nor shall
anything in it be construed as creating, any obligations to, or rights in, any party not a signatory
to this Agreement that would not exist independent of this Agreement.

(¢) If any particular portion of this Agreement is rendered invalid, illegal,
unenforceable or otherwise of no effect, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain
in full force and effect so that the essence and intent of this Agreement is preserved.

§3) A failure of either party to give notice or insist upon the immediate performance

of any right that it has under this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of that right or any
other right under this Agreement.

(8)  The section headings of this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be

considered a part of the substance of this Agreement or affect the interpretations of this
Agreement.

(h)  This Agreement shall not be assigned, transferred or conveyed by either party
without the prior written consent of the other party.

(1) The City shall act solely as an independent contractor with respect to the
operation and maintenance of the Parking Spaces. The relationship of the City and the CAA
under this Agreement shall in no way be construed to create a joint venture or partnership, or to
constitute either party as an agent or employee of the other for any purpose.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement on the day first
written above.

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

-6-

GRAPIDS 61448-72 160678



GRAPIDS 61448-72 160678

Steven R. Heacock, Chairman

CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS

George K. Heartwell, Mayor
Attest:

Mary Therese Hegarty, City Clerk



a2 2 . T team s
S F e OGRS R i

NOISNYdXT : :

;: oY et . HAUNID NOILNIANOD : : £0RLITL &""“...:
O TN IS SIS T T OO0 N S ON  T

'\;,-_,.\n,'._,(; \_,({r BOED ])T.Qz\r;@\. BCECHO

5 | P

1 H

i

-
.

H N

i

1

{
e !’.. HIPET] 3
I Y ] [ I il

-
e
P, N

.
i
g

EXHIBIT A

-
-
-

e

GRAPIDS 61448-72 160678v1



L0AVY Osgduly

W TATY |

e
NOUVGVI ovD

e 2008 oo
et EeSraia |

W
ememo iR iR R

Bt v

Py
i!ﬁllkl

4
H

//;//wf/y/

S i ¢ N el

A-2

i

,‘ﬁ

$93003 564

\m\\w\\n\

i

{3

i

S$002 Waen

[
I

| ,_.f;;f;:

s
o) & ®

2 ebed v LiaiHxX3

/a/y¢4 c

@ dade H6é

(d

Y

i,

GRAPIDS 61448-72 160678v1



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V
(Revised)
DATE EVENT EC MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION

Wed, May 18 | Available
Thur, May 19 | Rampage CL STEVE | Arena 6P-9P Season ticket holder party
Fri, May 20 Available
Sat, May 21 Rampage vs Los Angeles | AH | KEN Arena 6:30 PM Doors

7:30P-10P Football game

10P-10:20P | Post-game autographs

Rampage MwW Banquet A/B | 1:00 PM Set-up

6:30P-7:30P_| School night t-shirt/hot dog redemption
Sun, May 22 | Available
Mon, May 23 | Available
Tue, May 24 | Available
Wed, May 25 | Available
Thur, May 26 | Available
Fri, May 27 Available
Sat, May 28 Available
Sun, May 29 | Available
Mon, May 30 | Closed ~ Memorial Day
Tue, May 31 | Available
Wed, Jun 1 Available
Thur, Jun 2 Centerplate MW Banquet A 4:00 PM Set-up

6P-8P Meeting
Fri, Jun 3 Available
Sat, Jun 4 Available
Sun, Jun 5 SMG Millenium 11:30A-4P Company outing

Park

Mon, Jun 6 Available
Tue, Jun 7 Available
Wed, Jun 8 Available
Thur, Jun 9 Available
Fri, Jun 10 Available
Sat, Jun 11 Available
Sun, Jun 12 Available
Mon, Jun 13 Available
Tue, Jun 14 Available
Wed, Jun 15 Available
Thur, Jun 16 | Available
Fri, Jun 17 Available
Sat, Jun 18 Available
Sun, Jun 19 Available




MOHS NOLLVIIOANI

0 0 0| ONLLIIN WJ00:9-INV00:L 4V D/a11ve INAWADVNVA ONRIAS THL 6 ANNS "SANHL
Avd | WVSLOI-AV00:01
DONLLFIN NdOO-Z1-NV00:8
dNnidas Wood
Ala][eD puel (N TVARDY LNAITD AV00:L VO FALLDAdSYTd 0OLSOD ONIWOAM
HOLVMTIIA 1 d01-d9
d0€:01-d9 SYIHSN 01
HO4 | d01-d0g:9 NdOE:01 SYDIVL XIL 9
vZi-db JOINOW -Wd9 | MOFHOLVOD 1 LNOFAONW | V00:Z-INd00:01
J4OOAIOVIS I | NOJIAVILT IWNZZ | dOSIA¥EdNS! | 4V FONVINIOLYAd | Wd00:01-NdOE:L Ad ASVIID
MOHS NOLLYIJOANI
0 0 0] €1 NI JAON Nd00:8-Wd00:T a1ive INIWIDVNVIN ONRIJS FHL 8 ANNS "am
Avid NS 1:€-Nd00-€
ONLLIAN NA00-S-Nd00: 1
dn1as Wood
Au3|[eD puzl) [N [IVARDV INATTD Wd00:Z1 VD FALLDIdSIAd 0D1SOD DNINOAM
HOLVMTII 1 d01-d9
d0£:01-d9 SYAHSN 01
HO4 | d01-d0g:9 WdOg:01 SYMIVL XIL 9
d11-vog:L JOUNOW -WNd9 | JMOFHDOLVOD 1 FONVIRIOLIYAd | WJ00:01-INdOE L
JOOA ADVIS I | NODJIVILT INE T | dOSIAYAdNS 1 | av NI FAON JNd00:S-INV00:8 Ad FSVIID L ANNS "STNL
9 ANNI 'NOW
AV WINNFTTIN ONILNO JTWANS DS S AN 'NAS
ONLLITN NOOI@IVOd
DNILIFN AV o4
£qqo7 usjom DONLLITN 4vDo ONILITN STTVS
A1|[eD pueln N ONILIIN N00:$-INV00:8 H-VO AVAMLOOA TINRREIN ¥ ANNS "LVS
ONLLITW NOOYIVOd
ONILIFIN IV 04
ONLLIIN VD
£qqoT ysiam ONILIIN H-VO ONLLIAN STTVS
Al3|[eD pueln N YANNIA |  WJ00:01-INV00:8 a-011Ivd AVIMLOOA TTNRNIIN € ANNS TdA
ONILIIN NOOY@IVOd
DONLLFIN 4-V Od
ONILITN VD
£qqoT ysiom ONILFAN HVO ONILLIIN STTVS
Ajlep puein N YANNIA |  N00-01-INV00:8 a-o711vd AVAMLOOA TITIIIN
d01-d9
Ive i
ZZAN 1
HO¥O 1 do1-d9
WVOY 1 SYIHSN 01 1NO IA0ON d0€:11-d0E6
J400d IOVIS | do1-do€:9 SYTAVL XIL 9 (NOISSINYALNI ON)
FOVISIOVE | JOANOW | WJOT-Wd9 | OFHD LVOD | FONVIARONIId dSi:6— dog:L
JYOSIAYIINS [ | NO JIIIVIL T INF T | MOSIAMEANS 1 | 3V NI IAON ds-d1 Ad TIVAONE TTId 7 ANNS "SYNHL
dNnias WOOAMIVOd
dnias 4V Ood
dnias EQ ]
£qqo7 usipm dnias H-VO ONLLIFN STTVS
A13[[eD puein N dnias wdpQ:9-ure():8 ative YVIMIO0d TITTIIN
Ass[eD) pueln wdgo:Z1-wdoo:§
£qqo ysfom yosyaeod | (W 13anONvd V008 oV T1Ivd YINNIJ LINFWHORINE NSAD 1 INAS 'dIm
ALIYNO3S 30170d S.LN3I 44v1S 3SNOH 03 NOILONNS JNIL WOOY IN3A3 31va

G00¢Z annr



d11-d0¢:9 JOANON d11-d0€:9 | MDIHD LVOD 1
HO4 1 NO JIIVIL T LN T YOSIAYAINS | AV FONVINRIOLIId ds Ad NVd dd1dd YT AN T
HOLVATIIA 1 d0¢:01-d9
Ndotg:0l ds-d0e-tl
d01-d0¢:9 - Wd9 SY3IHSN 01
d0g-dT ® SYTAVL XIL 9
d0e:01-40g Tl JOYNON d¢-dog:Zt | JOFHO LVOO 1 FONVINEOIIId d01-d0¢:L
HOA | NO JIdVYL T LANd T YOSIAYEINS | AV FONVINIOIITId dOg+-dT Ad NVd J313d €TINS "SANHL
0 0 0 €1 ONILIIN Wd00:S-INV00:8 VD dIHSYIAVIT dIZ]dd
HOLVAMTIIL 1 do0g:01-d9
SYFHSN 01
do1-dot:9 Wdot:0t SYTAVL X119
d0€:01-d9 HOUNON =Wd9 | JDFHOLVOD 1
HO4 1 NO JIIVYL T LI T YOSIAYTLNS 1 AV HONVINIOIAEd d01-d0¢:L Ad NVd y3.L1dd TT AN 'daIm
NOILJFOTA Wd6S:11-INV00:8 vOod
NOISSTS TVIANTD Nd6S: 11-NV00-8 OlLVd
£qqoT1 ysiom NOILdZOTd Wd6S: 11-INV00:8 ONNA-a-0 TIvd
Auaf[en pueln 0 0 0 qv AANNIA Wd6S: 11-IWV00:8 -0 11vd ONIAaIM NILIVONIEM
HOLVMHTEIT | d0¢:01-d9
SYFHSN 01
d01-d0¢:9 WdO0£:01 SYTAVL X1L 9 HONVINIOJYHd Wd00:0t-dO¢:L Ad
d0e-0t-d9 HJOANONW —-Wd9 | JOdHO LVOD 1 TVSAVAHTY LId adl WA TVLIOTA
HO4 1 NO JIIVIL T LG T JOSIAYAINS | A4 NI SAOW ds-vg Ad NVd Jd.L1dd 12 ANNS 'SINL
9¢/S TLLNN
Wdb ONILIVLS
JOOQ FOVIS | 0 0 0l v NI JAOW d01-d9 Ad NVd J9.1dd 0T AN 'NOW
NOILLNJANOD
A3|[eD pueiD N ONLLAFIN wdgo:g-weoo:s JTIvd IN 40 "1d5d NOIOFT NVORIFNY 61 ANNS 'NNS
di1-d9
HOd T
YOSIAYAINS T doe:01-d9
SYgFHSN 01
vi-dii d0€£:01-d0¢:9 SYIAVL XIL 9 1NO A0 VI-dol
JOOaq FOVIS 1 JOUNOW | WdII-d9 | AOFHOLVOD 1 AIONVINIOIYAd d01-d0¢:L avd 09 STIIO d00D
AD0d 1 | NO JIAIVIL T IWG T AOSIAYILNS 1 av NI JAON ds-d1 Ad NHHM -NVNOM V O SLTADIS
NOILNIANOD
K3(1eD pueid N ONLLIFIN wd:g-wep0:8 2 11vd I 40 "Ld3d NOIOTT NVORIIINY 81 INNMLVS
NOLLNJANOD
Ai[[eD puein [N ONILIIN wdp):§-ureo0:g 2T11Ivd I 40 "Ld3d NOIOTT NVIORIFNY L1 NS T
91 INNS "SUNHL
Anilen puesp 0 0 0 v ONILIIN Wd00:9-INV00-8 VO dNOYD INFTVARLL STANNC 'dIM
ONILITN Wd00:7-INV00:L VO ONINIVYL OS] ¥1 ANNS "SANL
€1 INNL 'NOW
Z1 INOS 'NNS
NOISSHIS TVIINTD | d00:01-INd00:CI a-v od
0 0 0 1 NI-QvO1 Wd00:TI-INV00:8 ouny-aid ‘v T1ve SNOLLOINNOD dV1SXIND 11 INAL "LVS
SANT ONILFINW NV0¢:01
SNIOTE DNILITN WV00:6 ONILIIN LNFWIOVNVIN
N SINIWHSTIITA WV0L-8 VO dOL SHIOVNVI ALID 01 aNNI Tad
ALINND3S 32110d S.LN3 44v1S 3SNOH o3 NOILONNS INIL WOoOoYd 1N3IA3 31va

G00¢ INNr




€1 NI JAON Wd00:S-INV00'8 g-v 1Ivd SHSRIQYILNT TIFVID 0t NI "SANHL
6C INNI "qIM
8T ANNS "SANL
LT INNL 'NOW
HOLVMTIIA | d9-dot:1
SYIHSN 01
d0¢:s-dT SYTAVLXIL 9
d9-dog*1 JOANONW d9-dog:1 | ADFHO LVOD 1 L1NO FAON d0g:01-dot:s
HO4d 1 NO JIIVIL LNG T YOSIAYAINS 1 AV HONVINIODIEd d0g:6-d¢ Ad Nvd d413d 9T ANMS 'NNS
AqQoT usiam NOLLJIOTI
A|[eD pueln 0 0 0 qv ONIAgIm JT11Ivd ONIQAIm JLAOA
HOLVMTAII 1 d11-dog:9
Ndil ds-doe:Z1
d0¢:01-dL - Wd0g:9 SYIHSN 01
d0t-dT » SYIAVL XIL 9
d11-d0¢:T1 JOAINON ds-d0og:cl | ADFHO 1VOD | FONVINIOLIddd d0¢:0t-d8
HO4d 1 NO DIV Ld YOSIAYAINS | AV HONVIARIOIIEd d0¢:-dT Ad NVd 331dd STANAI "LVS
HOLVAMTYLI 1 d11-d0¢:9
SYFHSN 01
d0¢:01-dL SYIAV.L XIL 9
ALIYNO3S 30170d S.LN3 4d4v1S 3SNOH o3 NOILONNS INILL NOOY 1N3IA3 3ivd

S00¢Z aNnr




FAC.ROCH,RFT Promoter Availability Renort 05718705 Fage?
GRAND RAPIDS COMPLEX

ARENA

MPY 2005 et neme e amnem . uom—e e ot e e
20 - FRI

21 - SAT Rampage L[0]
22 - SUN

23 - MOM

24 - TUE

25 - WER

26 - THU

27 - FRI

28 - SAT

29 - 5N

30 - HON

31 - TUe

JUN 2205

01 - WED Cirque [71
02 - THU Cirque [T
03 - FRI Cirgue [T1
04 - SAT

05 - SuN

06 - MON

07 - TUE

€8 ~ WED

0% - THU

10 - FRI

11 - 8AT

12 - SUN

13 - MON

14 - TUE

15 - WD

16 - TRU

17 - FRI

18 - SAT

19 - 5Ly

20 - HON

21 - TUE STEVIE [T]
22 - WED STEVIE (T3
2% - THY STEVIE [T
24 - FRI STEVIE [T]
25 - GAT EYEVIE [T]
26 - SN STEVIE (T1
27 - MON

28 - TUE FEITY £
27 - WER

30 - THU

JUL 2005

01 - FRI

02 - SAT

03 - SUN

04 - MON

05 - TLE

06 - WED JOURNEY [T
07 - THU

08 - FRI

09 - SAT

10 - SUN

11 - HOH



FACRGDM.RPT Fromeler fvailabilily Rzport 05718705 Panet
LRAND RAPIDS COPLEX

ARENA
Jut. 2005 e e e o i e g e
12 - TUE JOURNEY TT1
13 - YeEp JUURNEY [T]
14 -~ THU JOURNEY [T
15 - FRI
14 ~ SAT Vegaie 1T
17 - SUN
13 - MON
19 - TUE JUURNCY [T
20 - kED HLuff [
21 - THU
22 - FRI
23 - 8AT
24 -~ SUN
25 - KON
26 ~ TUE
27 - WED
28 - TWY
29 - FR1
30 - 547
31 - SN Motivate [T]
AUG 2003
01 - MON Motivate [T]
02 - TUE #ativate L[T]
03 - WER Hotivate [T]
04 - THU
05 - FRI fipreqan LT3
04 - 54T
07 - SUN
(8 - Mon
09 - TUE
10 - WED
11 - THY
12 - FRI KClarkso [87

Clay & LT1
13 - 3AT
14 - SUN
15 - HON
16 - TUE Clarkson L[T]
17 - SED
18 - THU
19 - F&I
20 - SAT
21 -~ SUK
22 - MON
23 - TUE
24 - WER
23 - THU GRSKF [Tl
26 - FKI
27 - SAT
28 - SUN 3 Doors LT]
29 - MON
30 - TUE
31 - WED Idal {7
SEF 2003
01 - THU RockShow £T1



FAC JROOMLRFT Fremoter Availability Reperl 05/18/05  Fage!
GRAND RAPIDNS COMPLEX

ARENA

SEP 2005 wiie = swermilise orrr e o oo o1 2o o5
02 - FRI RockShow [T]
03 - GAT RockShow [1]
¢4 - SUN

05 - MON

04 ~ TUE

07 - WEl

8 - THU

09 - FRI

10 - SAT

11 - SN

12 - HOW + Rish (R
13 - TUE + RBUB [

14 - WED REER {11

15 - THU REEB n

16 - FRI RERB (71

17 - GAT REBB [n

18 - SUN REEB [T

19 - MON

20 - TUE Teerry [T]

21 - Web TFerry [11

22 - THU + PBR [n

23 - FRT PBR mn

24 ~ SAT P2R [Tl

29 - SUN - PBR {11

26 - MON - FBR {71

27 - TUE Destiny [7]

28 - WED

29 - Thu #EG [Tl

30 - FRI RTravis [T]

ocy z005

01 - Sa7 RTravis (T2

02 - SUN

03 - M

04 - TUE

05 - WED

06 - THU Weezer [T1]

07 - FRIL HontGent [T
Miller [8]

08 ~ SAT Monthent [T
Kuller [5]

09 - SUN

10 - MON Wezzer LT]

11 - TUE

12 - WERD

13 ~ THU

14 - FRI

15 -~ SAT Griffins LT1 (1300a%)

14 - SUN

17 - wON

18 - TUE

19 - WED

20 - THU Griffins [T1 (1:00a%)
#ontGert (S

21 - FRI FontGent [V1

22 - SAT Griffins [T1 (1I00AM)



FAC.ROOH.RPY

LCY 2005

23 - S
24 - MON
28 - TUE
26 - WED
27 - TRU

28 - FRT

27 - BAT

3¢ - sy
J1 - MON
NDV 2005
01 - TUE
02 - WED
03 - THU
04 - FRI

05 - eaT

G6 - SUN

07 - Mo
28 - TUE
0% - WED
10 - THU
11 - FRI
12 - SAT
13 - SN
14 - HON
17 - Tue
16 - WED
17 - THY
18 - FRI

19 - GAT
20 - SN
21 - MON
22 - TUE
23 - wED
24 - THU
25 - FRI
26 - SAT

27 - S
28 - MON
2% - TUE
30 - WED
DEC 2005
01 - THU
02 - FRI

03 - 5AT
04 - SUN

ARENA

Hontfent
MonlGeni

Griffins
RONJOVI
Griffins
BONJOVI
Griffins
BONJGYIT
BONJAVI
BONJGVT

BONJGVI
BOMIOV]
BRKSEDN
Griffing
BRKS&DN
Griffins
BRKS&DN
B&RS2DN
KUrban

DTales
DVales
DTales
ITales

Griffins

Griffins
BONJOVI
Griffins
BONJCGVI
BONJOVI

B-ball C

B~ball C
B-ball C
Griffins

WWE Raw
CHAFMAN

BigRich
RigFich
Griffins
Griffins
BigRich

s}
7

[8]
(71
sl
£T]
[el
{nl
[Tl
7]

m
{7
{11
[s]
{71
[5]
Tl
i
€s1

1
{rn
cn
i

(RiN]

5]
m
[5]
m
1l

ol

£ni
fnl
51

£
7
[11
[Tl
[s]

(sl
£m

(3:00PK)

(1:100AY)

(3:007#)

(1:00aK)

(41007)

(3300PH)

(11G0AK)

(61G0FM)

(8:024M)
(6:00PH)
(1:60AM)

(3100FH)
(130084)

Fromoler fvailebilily Repoceb

LRAND REPIDS COHPLEX

Ga/18/70%

Faoe?



FAC +RODNRPT Prompier Availahilily Report 05/16/05 Paoe!
GREND RAFING COWPLEX

ARENA
DEC 2005 e
05 ~ MON
06 - TUE
07 - kED seiffins [51 (1106AM)
08 - TH!
0% - FRI
16 - BAT GYeu £53 (12:00F)
Briffins [8] (11004M)
11 - SUN T51 (R1)]
12 - MON 1549 7
13 - TUE
14 - WED
15 - THY
14 - FRI Griffins [T7 (3200PH)
17 - 8AT Griffins [11
18 ~ SHN
19 - MON
20 - TUE
21 - WED
22 - THU
23 - FRI Griffins [T1 (1100AM)
24 - SAT
25 - SN
26 - MM
27 - TUE
28 - WED Griffins [T1 (3:0074)
2% - THU Griffins L[T]
30 - FRI Griffins LT]
31 - GAT firiffins LT (130CAM)
Jan 2904
01 - SuM
02 - HON
03 - TUE
04 - WED + ARENACR LT3
05 - THU + ARENACR 7]

06 - FRI ARENACR LT

07 - 8fT ARCNACR [T1

08 - SUN ARENACR [T1

0% - HON - fRENACR [T1

10 - TUE

11 - KED Griffins [T (110044

12 - T

13 - FRT Griffins [T (3100PH)

14 - SAT Griffins [TT (1:100AM)

15 - SN

16 - HOR

17 - TUE

18 - WED

19 - THU

20 - FRI Griffins [81 (310CFM)
GLORIES [T]

21 - 6AT Grilfins [51 (11004M)
GLORIES [T]

22 - SN SLOBIES (T3

23 - MK

o4 - TUE



FAC . RODM.RFT Promoter Aveilability Report 05718785  Page!

CRAND RAFILS CCrPLEX

ARENA
JﬂN 200& PRI ————tmim on e e Ese oo it
25 - WED
26 - THU + TRUCKS 7]
27 - FRI TRUCKS [T
GLDB1ES [S)
28 - 54T TRUCKS  [T2
LOBIES ([8)
29 - Sl TRUCKS LTI
GLOBIES [S1
30 - MON - TRUCKS  [T1
3 - Tie
FEB 2006
01 - kER
02 - THU Briffins LTI (J100FM)
03 - FRY Griffins [S]
GLOBIES [T1
04 - AT Griffins £S5 (1:00A%)
GL.OBIES LTI
05 - SiN GLORIES [T
04 - MGN
¢7 - TUE
08 - KED
09 - THU
10 - FRI Griffins [8] (1:004M)
CLORIES [T]
11 - 8AT Griffins [S81 (1iCOANM)
GLOKRIES [T
12 - SUN Griffins [81 (1:00AM)
GL.OBIES [T1
13 -~ HON
14 - TUE
15 - WED
16 - THU
17 - FRI Griffins [T (31COPM)
18 - SAT Griffins [1]
19 - SUN Griffing [T1 (13)0AM)
20 - MDN Syachre [T]
24 - TUE Synchro [T7
22 - WED Synchro LT1
23 - THU Synchro [T1
24 - FRI Syachro LTI
2% - SAT Synchro [T]
26 - SUN Synchio [T1
27 - MON
22 - TUE
MAR 2004
01 - WED Griffing LT1 (1:00AM)
02 - THU RODED {11
03 - FRI RODED 7l
04 ~ SAT RODED [71]
05 - SUN Criffins LTI (13004
06 ~ MON
¢7 - TUE
08 - WED Griffins [T (1100AM)
0% - THU Freastyl L[T]

10 - FRI Freestyl 7]



FAC.ROOM.RFT Promcter fivailability Report 05/18/05 Paoe!

GRAND RAPIZS COMPLEX

ARENA
HAR 2006 - -
11 - 84T Freastyl LT1
12 - G Freestyl [1]
13 - MGN
14 - TUE
13 - WED Griffing LTI (3100FH)
16 - THU Griffins L1
17 - FRI Griffins [T]
18 - SAT Griffins [T
19 - SUN Griffins [T1 (1100AN)
20 - MCN
21 - TUE
22 - WED Griffing L[T] (3300FN)
23 - THU Griffins [T1 (1:0044)
24 - FRI Stars [l
23 - SAT griffins [T1 (31GIFH)
26 - SUN Griffins [T1 (110CaM)
27 - MGi

28 - TUE + DISNEY (D]

29 - WED + DISNEY [D1

30 - THU DISNEY L[]

31 - FRI DISNEY [D7

APR 2006

01 - SAT - DISNEY [

02 - SUN - DISNEY [D}

03 - HON

04 - TUE

03 - WED

06 - THU

07 - FRI Briffins [T1 (3100FH)
08 - GAT Griffins [T1 (1100AM)
09 - SUN

10 - MON

11 - TUE

12 - WED

13 - THU

14 - FRI Griffins [T1 (3100F)
15 - SAT Griffins [T1 (11024M)
16 - SuN

17 - HON

18 - TUE

19 - WED

2¢ - THY

21 - FRI

22 - 8AT

23 - 8UN

24 - HON

25 -~ TUE

26 - WERD

27 - THU

28 - FRI GAITHER 71

29 - SAT GVSU Cem L[C)

3¢ ~ SUN

HAY 20064

01 - MOw

02 - TLE Mavenpor [



FAC.ROOR.RPY Promoter Availabilily Repert Ga/18/05  Fagst

GRAND RAPLDS COMPLEX

"ﬁY 2006 i e —————s St mem e E .y 208 e barm
03 - WED

04 - THY

05 - FRI

046 - 8AT

07 - SUN

08 - MOM CHSPIGN LT]
69 - TUE

10 - WED

11 - THU

1z - FRI GAIYHER [T1
13 - GAT

14 - SUN

15 - MON

16 - TUE

17 - WED

18 - THU

19 - FRI

2C - SAT

21 - 8UN

22 - MCM

23 - T

24 - WED

23 - THY

26 - FRI

27 - GAT

28 - 8N

29 - HON

36 - TUE

J1 - KED



Dale H. Sommers
Owner Representative
Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

TO: Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
FROM: Dale H. Sommers
DATE: May 18, 2005

SUBJECT: Update of DeVos Place Expansion Closeout

Over the last 30 days the following have been completed:

[
.

Numerous punch list and closeout items of miscellaneous nature completed
Worked with landscaper to complete outside site work (trees, scrubs, mulch)
Met with Bob White to review cash flow till end of project, minimal
payments left

Completed roof repair issues

LED lights in Ballroom now scheduled to be installed last week of May
Office furniture for Sue’s Office installed and complete

Furniture for Business Center being installed today May 18

2 items remain on punch list, 3 inspections remain

Rails for river walk installed

w

©PIAY R

Next 30 days hope to complete final items, which include (LED lights in Ballroom,
replacement of pavers on river side, landscaping, and other warranty work).
Closeout/wrap up continues to progress well. If complete in June, final retainage
will be paid and account closed.

Met with Construction Manager on May 17, they will have final billings to me for
approval by June 8, 2005.

Goal is to have the project complete and closed out by June 30, 2005.

If you have any questions feel free to contact me.

Dale H. Sommers



